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MKPSenssocuwres
CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
TO THE MEMBERS OF JR TOLL ROAD PRIVATE LIMITED

Report on the Financial Statements

I. We have audited the dccompanying financial statements of IR Toll Road Private Limited
(“the Company™), which comprise the Balance Sheet as at 31+ March, 2017, the Statement of
Profit and Loss, the Cash Flow Statement for the year then ended, and a summary of the
significant accounting policies and other explanatory information,

Management's Responsibility for the Standalone Financial Statements

in Section 134 (5) of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) with respect to the preparation of
these financial statements that give a true and fair view of the financial position, financial
performance (including other comprehensive income), cash flows and changes in equity of
the Company in accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in India,
including the Indian Accounting Standards specified in the Companies (Indian Accounting
Standards) Rules, 2015 (as amended) under Section 133 of the Act. This responsibility also
includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of

and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies;
making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent: and design,
implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were
operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records,
relevant to the preparation and presentation of the financial statements that give a true and

fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error,
Auditor’s Responsibility

3. Our responsibility is to cxpress an opinion on these Standalone Ind AS Financial statements
based on our audit.

We have taken into account the provisions of the Act, the accounting and auditing standards
and matters which are required to be included in the audit report under the provisions of
the Act and the Rules made there under.

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing specified under
Section 143(10) of the Act. Those Standards require that we comply with ethical
requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the financial statements are free from materia| misstatement.

4. An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and
the disclosures in the financial statements, The procedures selected depend on the auditor's
judgment, including the assessment cf the risks of material misstatement of the financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor
considers internal financial control relevant to the Company’s preparation of the financial
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Statements that give a true and fair view in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, hut not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on
whether the Company has in place an adequate internal financial controls system over
financial reporting and the operating cffectiveness of such controls. An audit also includes
evaluating the appropriateness of the accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
the accounting estimates made by the Company’s Directors, as well as cvaluating the overall
presentation of the financial statements.

5. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our audit opinion on the standalone tinancial statements.
Opinion
6. In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to
us, the aforesaid standalone Ind AS financial statements glve the information required by
the Act in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the
accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at
31+ March, 2017, and its loss, its cash flows and the changes in equity for the year ended on
that date.
Other Matter
7. The financial information of the Lompany for the year ended March 31, 2016 and

the transition date opening balance sheet as at April 1, 2015 inluded in these standalone Ind
AS financial statements, are based on the previously issued statutory financial statements
for the year ended March 31, 2016 and March 31, 2015 prepared in accordance with the
Companies {Accounting Standards) Rules, 2006 which were audited by us, on which we
expressed an unmodified opinion vide our report dated May 14, 2016 and May 18,
2015 respectively. The adjustments to those financial statements for the differences in
accounting principles adopted by the company in transition to Ind AS have been audited by
s,

Our opinion is not qualified in respect of this matter.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

8.

As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order 2016 (“the order”) issued by the
Central Government of India in terms of sub-section (11) of section 143 of the Act, and on
the basis of such checks of the books and records of the company as we considered
appropriate and according to the information and explanations given to us, we give in
Annexure —"A" a statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the order.,

As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:

We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our
knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit;

In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company
si far as it appears from our ination of those books
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c. The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss (including other comprehensive
income), the Cash Flow Statement and the Statement of Changes in Equity dealt with by this
Report are in agreement with the books of account

d. in our opinion, the aforesaid standalone financial statements comply with the Indian
Accounting Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act

. On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on 31st March,
2017, taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on
31=t March, 2017 from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164 (2] of the Act.

f. With respect to the adequacy of the Internal Financial Controls over financial reporting of
the company and the operating cffectiveness of such controls, we give our separate report
in "Annexure - B”,

g With respect to the other matters ta be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with
Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit an¢ Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of
our information and according to the explanations given to us:

i) The Company does not have any pending litigations which would have a material
impact its financial position-

ii) Based upon the assessment made by the company, there are no material foreseeable
losses on its long term contracts that may require any provisioning

iii) In view of there being no amounts required to be transferred to the Investor
Education and Protection Fund for the year under audit the reporting under this
clause is not applicable.

iv) The company has provided requisite disclosures in its financial statements as to
holdings as well as dealings in Specified Bank Notes during the period from
November 8, 2016 to December 30, 2016. Based on audit procedures and relying
on the management representation we report that the disclosures are in
accordance with books of account maintained by the Company and as produced
to us by the Management - Refer Note 32

For MKPS & Associates
Chartered Accountants
FRN 302014E

/ .
‘-._.H:EA Narendra Khandal
~Partner
M No. 065025

Mumbai, April 14,2017
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Annexure - A to the Independent Auditors Report
Referred to in para 7 of our report of even date, to the members of JR Toll Road Private
Limited for the year ended March 31, 2017

i}

iii)

vi)

wii]

(#) The company is maintaining proper records showing full particulars, with respect to ils
fixed assets comprising of Intangible Assets and Intangible assets under development.

(b] The fixed assets of the company have been physically verified by the management
during the year and no material discrepancies have been noticed on such verification. In
our opinion, the frequency of verification is reasonable.

[c)  According to the information and explanations provided to us, there are no immuavable
properties included in the fixed assets of the company and accordingly the reporting
requirements under sub clause (c) of clause (i) of paragraph 3 of the order are not
applicable.

In our opinion, and according to the information and explanations given to us, the company
has sub-cantracted the entire construction / operation related activities and therefore does
not carry any inventories. Hence, the reporting requirements under clause (i) of paragraph 3
of the order are not applicable.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanation given to us, the company
has not granted any loans, secured or unsecured to companies, firms, Limited Liability
Partnership or other parties covered in the register maintained under section 189 of the
Lompanies Act 2013, Accordingly, the reporting requirements under sub-clause (a), (b) and
(¢} of Clause (iii) of paragraph 3 of the order are not applicable.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, there are no
loans, investments, guarantees and securities granted in respect of which provisions of
section 185 and 186 of the Act are applicable and hence the reporting requirements under
clause (iv) of paragraph 3 of the order are not applicable,

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the company
has not accepted any deposits during the period under audit. Consequently, the directives
issued by Reserve Bank of India and the provisions of sections 732 to 76 of the Act and the
rules framed thereunder are not applicable.

The maintenance of cost records has heen specified by the Central Government under sub-
section (1] of section 148 of the Act for the company. We have broadly reviewed such records
and are of the opinion that prima-facie, the prescribed records have heen made and
maintained. We have not, however, made a detailed examination ol the records with 4 view
tn determine whether they are accurate or complete.

(a) According to the information and explanations given to us and based on the records of
the company examined by us, the company is generally regular in depositing the
undisputed statutory dues including provident fund, employees' state insurance,
income-tax, sales-tax, service tax, duty of customs, duty of excise, value added tax, cess
and any other material statutory dues, as applicable, with the appropriate authorities in
India.

According to the information and explanations given to us, there are no undisputed
amounts in respect of the aforesaid statutory dues which in arrears as at March 31,
2017 for a period of more than six months from the date they became payable.

—
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(b) According to the information and explanations given to us, there are no applicable

statutory dues which have not been deposited on account ofany dispute.

vili) Based upon the audit procedures carried out by us and on the basis of information and

explanations provided by the management we are of the opinion that the company has not

defaulted in repayment of dues to banks / Financial Institutions or Debenture Holders. The
company does not have any borrowings from government.

ix)  In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the term loans
taken by thc company have been utimately udlised for the purpose for which they were
taken. Further, the company has not raised any funds by way of initial / further public offer.

x) Based on the audit procedures performed by us for the purpose of reporting the true and fair
view of the financial statements and as per the information and explanations given to us by
the management, we report that we have neither come across any Instance of fraud by the
company or on the company by its officers or employees, noticed or reported during the year,
nor have we been informed of any such case by the management.

xi)  According to the information and explanations given to us, the company has not paid any
managerial remuneration during the year and hence the reporting reguirements under
clause (xi) of paragraph 3 of the order are not applicable,

Xil) The company is not a Nidhi Company and hence the reporting requirements under clause
(xii) of paragraph 3 of the order are not applicable.

xiii) According to the information and explanations given to us, all transactions entered into by
the company with related parties are in compliance with section 177 and 178 of the Act
where applicable and the details thereof have been disclosed in the financial statements as
required by the applicable accounting standards.

xiv) The company has not made any preferential allotment or private placement of shares or fully
or partly convertible debentures during the year under audit.

xv}  As per the information and explanations provided to us, the company has not entered into
any non-cash transactions with directors or persons connected with them.

xvi)  In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the company is
not required to be registered under Section 45 - 1A of the Reserve Bank of India, 1934.

For MKPS & Associates
Chartered Accountants
FRN 302014E

f
3 --"'é Narendra Khandal
artner
M No. 065025
Mumbai, April 14, 2017
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Annexure - B to the Independent Auditors Report
Referred to in para 8 of our report of even date, to the members of JR Toll Road Private
Limited for the year ended March 31,2017

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of
the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”)

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of JR Toll Ruad Private
Limited (“the Company”) as of March 31, 2017 in conjunction with our audit of the financial
statements of the Company for the year ended on that date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company’s management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial
caontrols based on the internal control aver financial reporting criteria established by the Company
considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of
Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting issued hy the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of India (ICAl). These responsibilities include the design, implementation and
maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the
orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to company's policies, the
safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and
completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial
information, as required under the Companies Act, 2013.

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls over
financial reporting based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance
Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (the "Guidance Note") and the
Standards on Auditing, issued by ICAl and deemed to be prescribed under section 143(10) of the
Companies Act, 2013, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls, both
applicable to an audit of Internal Financial Controls and, both issued by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of India. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical
requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
adequate internal financial controls over financial reporting was established and maintained and if
such controls operated effectively in all material respects,

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the
internal financial controls system over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness. Our
audit of internal financial controls over financial reporting included obtaining an understanding of
internal financial controls over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness
exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectivencss of internal control based
un the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor'’s judgement, including the
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial staterments, whether due to fraud
or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our audit opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls system over financial reporting.
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Meaning of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

A company's internal financial contro] over financial reporting is a process designed o provide
reasonable assurance regarding the relia bility of financial reporting and the preparation of financial
statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A
company's internal financial control over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures
that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect
the transactions and dispositions of the assels of the company; (2] provide reasonable assurance
that transactions are recorded as fecessary lo permit preparation of financial statements in
accordance with generally accepted accoun tng principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the
company are being made only in accordance with authorisations of management and directors of
the company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of
unauthorised acquisition, use, or disposition of the company's assets that could have a material
effect on the financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting, including
the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements
due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the
internal financial controls over financial reporting to future periods are subject to the risk that the
internal financial control over financial reporting may become inadequate because of changes in
conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls
system over financial reporting and such irternal financial controls over financial reporting were
operating effectively as at March 31, 2017, based on the internal control over financial reporting
criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of internal contro] stated
in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the
Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.

For MKPS & Associates
Chartered Accountants
FRN 302014E

-

s
_eA faren dra Khandal

tner
M No. 065025

Mumbai, April 14, 2017
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JR Toll Road Pt Ltd
Balance Sheet

— e - % Millions
Particulars As al As at As at
MNote 31st March, 2017 st March, 2016 1st April, 2015
ASSETS
MNon-current assets
{a) Intangible assets 4 4,248,080 439271 3,988 22
(b) Intangible assets under development 4 - - 548 41
{¢) Detferred tax assets (nat) ar a80.87 274.03 145,68
id} Other non - current assets =] 0.42 - 0.06
Current assets
(a) Financial Assots
(it Cash and cash equivalents Ea 47 06 10.64 21.83
() Qther financial assets ab 14.82 LR 2313
(b} Cumenl Tax Assats (Net) T 1.41 11.88
(o) Other currenl aszats T 1013 19.05 3753
Total Assets i 4 704,50 4,703.66 4.789.84
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
EQUITY
(@) Equity share capital 2 0.17 0.11 011
(b} Subordinated debt (in nature of Equily} 9a 1,330.31 1.1058.30 804,30
() Olher aquity g (6811.28) (411.85) {(181.13)
Total Equity 71914 GO7.86 T23.24
LIABILITIES
Non-current liabilitics
&} Financial Liakililies
{i} Borrowings 10 3,308 20 348220 372329
{il) Other financial habilities 12b - B8.04 87.70
ib) Provisions 13b 282.94 22597 128.45
Current liabilities
{&) Financial Liabililies
(1) Trade payables 11 5121 27.59 63.78
(iiiy Other financial liabilities 12a 33966 180,30 62.60
(k) Other current liabilities 14 2.04 1.67 0.66
o) Provisions 134 W EA] 0.03 Q.08
Total Equity and Liabilities 4,704.50 4, 703.66 : 4,789.84

I'he accompanying surmmary of significant accounting policies and othe

of the Financial Slatements.

This is the Balance Shest referred to in our report of oven date

For MKPS & Associates
Chartered Accountants .,
Firm Hegn. No. 302014E

':ﬁ_af;gé rendra Khandal
SPariner

Membership Mo, - D&S02Y5

Place - Mumbai
Date : April 14, 20017

Kaushik Pal
rector
DHIN:05237230

Hlace | Mumbai
Date : April 14, 207 ¢

For and on behalf of the Board

DIN:OT130371

rexplanatory infonmtaion (notes) are an inlegral parn
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JR Tell Road Pyt Ltd
Statement of Profit and Loss

- o g ? Millions
Year ended Year ended
Particulars Note March 31, 2017 March 31, 2016
Revenue from Operations 15 452 .06 438.54
Other Income 16 098 3.79
Total Income =3 453.04 442 33
Expensecs
ol Dperation and Maintainence exXponses 17 125.58 160.84
Construclion cost . -
Employee Lenefits expense 18 3.53 5.12
Finance cosls 19 AG4 G0 475.36
Amorization expense 4 14463 124.67
Mher expenses 20 21.85 30,43
Total expenses o 6016 TG 42
Profit / (loss) before tax {307.15) (354.09)
Tax gxpensea
Currenl lax 063
Deferred tax charge/{credit) (107.04) (124.33)
{10704y ~ (123.70)
Profit{Loss) for the period (200.11) (230.39)

Other Comprehensive Income

(i) Items that will not be reclassified

to profit or loss
Remeasuremenls of net defined 0.58 (.05}
benefil plans : Gains / (Loss)

(i) Income tax relating to itoms that will not
be reclassified to profit or loss

Remeasurements of net defined benefit plans 0.20 (0.02)
Other Comprehensive Incomel(Loss) for the year 0.38 {0.03)
Total Comprehensive Incom ef{Loss) for the year (199.73) {230.42)

Earnings per equity share of Rs. 10 each
Basic & Diluted 26 (18.694.45) (21,523 .44)

The accompanying summary of significant aceounting policies and ather @xplanatory informtaion (notes) are
an integral part of the Financial Statements,

This is the Stalement of Profit and Loss referred to in our report of even date.

For MKPS & Associates For and on behalf of the Board
Chartered Accountants
Hirm Regn. No,  3020714E

— Marendra Khandal Kaushik Pal
A Partner Diractor
Membarship Mo, ;. 055025 DIN: 05237230
Flace . Mumbai Flace . Mumbai

Date | April 14, 2017 Date : April 14, 2017
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JR Toll Road Pvi Lid
Cash flow Statement

Particulars

Year ocnded
March 31, 2017

T Millicns
Year ended
March 31, 2016

A CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES:
Profit before exceptional items and tax
Adilistments for:
Amortization expenseo
irterest income
Dividend income
Interest expense
Cash Gonerated from Operations befare
working capital changes
Adjustments for:
tincreassldeciease in financial assets axcept for investmeants
iIncrease)/deciease in other curren| assets
Increase/idecrease) in trade payables
Increasedocieese] In ather finanoal liabilites
Increase/{dociease) in provisions
Intrease/{decrease) In other current liabllifias
Cash gencraled from operations
Taxes (paid) net of rafunds
Met cash generated from operating activities - [4]
B CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES:
Purchase/sale proceeds of intangible assets (including intangitbe
assast under develspment)
Furchase of current investments (net af proceads)
Interest recaived
Net cash (used in) / generated from investing activities - [B]
C CASH FLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES:

Proceeds from Sub-debt
Repayment of leng term barrowings
Interest paid

Net cash used in financing activities - [C]

Net increase/{decrease) in cash and cash equivaents - [A+B+C]
Add; Cash and cash equivalents at tho beginning of the year
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the yoar

Components of Cash and cash aquivalents

Balances with banks - in Current accounis
Deposils with maturity of kess (han thrae maonths

Cash on hand
Tatal Cash and cash equivalents

Nole: The above Stalement of Cash Flows has been preparcd under the 'Indire

“Slatemant of Cash Flows',

I'he secompanying summialy of significant accuunting policies and other ex

parl ol the Financial Statoments.

Thiz is the Cash Flow Statement referred o 0 our report of oven dals

For MKPS & Assaciates
Chartered Accountants
Firm Regn. Mo, 302014F

{_~Marendra Khardal
Partrner
< Membership No - 065025
Place | Mumbai
Date - April 14, 2017

{307.15) 1354.09)
144 63 124,67
(0.385) :

: (0,60
464 G0 A75 36
307,72 24544
GREC) 17 21
B2 1048
2367 (a6 20
SG.06 {086
44 42 82,06
037 1.01
124,51 8153
426.22 378.97
(1.71} 405
424 51 3age1
4 B 30.03
- .50
036
504 3953
221.00 205.00
{(175.12) [176.48)
(438 82) {468 25)
[303.04) {38073
36.52 {11.29)
10.54 2183
47 06 10 54
45,63 .13
143 141
47 .06 10.54

Kaushik Pal
Director
DIN:0S237230

Place - Mumbai
Date : April 14, 2017

¢l Method' as set gul i Ind AS 7,

Planatory inlgimtaion (nates) are an integral

!I'In'ﬂ'a/n ani

Dhrector _
DIN:O7130X7
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JR Tell Road Company Limited
Statement of Changes in Equity for the year ended

A. EQUITY SHARE CAPITAL

¢ Millions

Balance at the Changes in Balance at
Particilars beginning of the qu:ﬂt}‘ 5halm the end of
year capital during the year

JCes _ . the year

For the year ended March 31, 2016 011 0:1

I_Fof the year cnded March 31, 2017 0.11 | l 011

BE. OTHER EQUITY : ¥ Millions
Equity Component Heserves and
Surplus
of compoud Foisl
Particulars financial Retained
instruments Earnings
(Note 8b) {Mota 8¢)

Balance at April 01, 2015 32.50 {213.63) (181.13)
Frofil for the year {230.39) {230.39)
Uther comprehensive income for the year (0.03) 10.03}

Total comprehensive income for the year | - (230.42) (230.42)

Transaction with owners in their capacity as

OWNers : .
Converted into Sub-ordinated debl -
Dividend Paid -

Balance at 31st March 201§ 32.50  (444.05) (411.55)

Balance at April 01, 2016 32.50 (444.05) {411.55)
Profit for the year (200.11) (200.11)
Other comprehensive income for the vear (.38 0.38

Total comprehensive income for the year - (199.73) (199.73)

Transaction with owners in their capacity as

oWNEers : .
Converted into Sub-ordinated debt "
Dividend Paid Z

Balance at 31st March 2017 = 32.50 (643.78) (611.28)

I'his is statement of change of equity referred to in our report of even

For MKPS & Associates For and on behalfl of the Board

Chartered Accountants
Finn Regn Mo, 302014E

“—"Nérendra Khandal Kaushik Pal ; \ Wda fyani
a
hA

riner Crirectar ; | Directa
embership No. - 0650295 CHMN:OS5237230 i DIM:QF 180371
Place : Mumbai Place : Mumbai

Dale  April 14, 2017 Date ; April 14, 2017
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IR Toll Road Private Limited
Notes to Financial Statements

Mote 1: Corporate information

JB Toll Road Private Limited {“the Company™; has been awarded on Build, Operate and Transfer (BOT) basis,
strengthening of the existing carnagewsay from 246 Km, m 298 Km. on the Jaipur - Reengus sechon of National
Highway No. 11 in the State of Rajasthan and widening thereof to 4 lanes and its improverment, operation and
maintenance under the Concession Agreement dated February 19, 2010 with Mational Highways Authority of
India. The Concession Agreement is for a period of 18 years from August 14, 2010 being the appointed Date,

Note 2: Basis of preparation

These Financial Statameants of the Company comprises of Balance Sheet, Staterment of Frofit and Losy,
Cash Flow Stalement, Statement of Changes in Equity, a summary af significanl accounting policics,
notes and other explanatory information,

These Financial Statements comply in all malerial aspects wilh Indian Accounling Standards (Ind AS)
notificd under Saclion 132 of the Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) [Companies (Indian Accounting
Standards) Rules, 20146) and uther rolevant pravisions of the Acl. These Financial Staterments have been
prepared in accordance with the requirements of the information and disclosures mandated by Scheduls
il of the Acl, applicable Ind AS other applicable pronouncements and regulativng. These Financial
Statements are the first Financial Statements of the Company under Ind AS The Financial Statements up
to year ended 31 March 2016 were prapared in accordance with the accolunting slandards notified unde
Companies (Avcounting Standard) Rules, 2006 (as amended) and other refovant provisions of the Act,

Ihese Financial Statements have been precarcd on a historical cosl basis, excepl for cerain assels and
liabilities which have been measured at fair value For the purpose of preparation of these Financial
Statements, the transition dale ta Ind AS i considered as April 1, 2015,

Thesa Financlal Statements are presenied in 2 Millions, except where otherwise indicated,
Accounting standards issued but not yol effective

Ind AS 115 ‘Revenue from conlracts with dusiomers' have been published by Ministry of Corporate Affairs
{MCA) but are not yet effective. Ind AS 115 establishes principles for reporting useful infarmation to users
of the financial stalements about the nature, amount, timing and uncertainly of revenue and cash flows
arising from an entity's contract with customers. Ind AS 1 15 supersedes other revenue standards ie. Ind
AS 11 and Ind AS 18 notified by Ministry of Corporate Affairs (MCA). Management has undertaken an
assessment of the impact of this standard &nd does not belisve that the impact would be material.

Note 3: Summary of Significant accounting policies
3.1 Current versus non-current classification

The Company presents asseis and iabilities in the balance sheet based on curent! non-current
classification

An asset is reated as current when it is:

* Expected to be realised or intendead to be sold or consumed in normal operating cycle

= Expected to be realised within twelve monlhs after the reporting period, or

*  Cash of cash cquivalert unless resticted from being exchanged or used ta seltle a liabiity for at least
twelve manths afler the reporting perod

All other assels are classified as non-current
A liability is current when:
*  Itis expecled o be setiled in normal operating cycle
= ltis due to be settied within twelve nionths atter the reporting penod, or
*  Theie is no unconditional right lo defer the settlement of he Liability for at least lwelva manths after
the reporing pariod
All ather liabilities are classified as non-cusent,

Deferred lax assels and liabilities are classdied as non-current assels and liabilities,

The operating cycle is the ime betwezn the acquisition of assets for processing and their realization jn.-
cAsh and cash equivalenls. Tha Company has idenlified twelve months as s operating cycle


41018371
Stamp

41018371
Stamp


IR Toll Road Private Limited
Notes to Financial Statements

3.2 Foreign currencies

3.3

Functional and presentation currency
It;ms included in the Finencial Statomenis of the Company are measured using the currency of the
Primary economic environment in which the entity operates ('the functional currency'). The Financial

Statements are presented in Indian Runees {%). which is the Company's functional and presentation
currency

Transactions and balances

Foreign curreney transactions are ranslated inlo the Tunctional currency uzing fhe exchange rates
prevailing at the dates of the Uansactions Fureign exchange gaing and |osses resulting from the
setflament of such transactions and from the translation at year-end exchange rates of monctary assats
and liabilities dencminated in foreign currencics are racognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss with an
exception of the fallowing:-

Under Ind AS 21 exchange differences arising an the translation/settlemcnt of non-monctary ilem should
be treated as income or loss in Statement of Profit and Loss, Howaver, Ind AS 101 gives an exemption for
existing long term fareign CUTTENCY non-inonotary items wherein the Campany can continue the palicy
adopted for treatment of exchange differences arising on long-term forsign currency monetary items
pertaining ta the acquisilicn of a depreciaule asset for items recognized on or befare March 31, 2015

For any new long term foreign currency non-monetary ilem recognized from or after first Ind AS financial
reporting period, deferralfamaorization of exchange difference will not be allowed, rather the Company will
apply Ind AS 21 for recognition of gains and losses,

Fair value measurement

Fair value is the price that would be received to =ell an asset or paid to transfer a liakility in an orderly
transaction between market participants al the measurement date The fair value measurement is based
on the presumption that the transaction to soil the assel or lransler the liability takes place either:

*  Inthe principal markel for the asset or liability, or
* Inthe absence of a principal market, it the most advantageous market for the assel or liability

The principal or the most advantageous market must be sccessible by the Company.

The fair value of an assat or a liability is measured using the assumptions that market participants would
use when pricing the asset or liability, assuining that market participants act in their economic best interest,

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into account a market participant's ahility to
generate economic benefils by using the asset in its highest and best use or by selling it to another market
participant that would use the asset in its highest and best use.

The Company uses valuation technigques that are appropriate in the circumstances and for which sufficient
data are available to measure fair value, maximizing the use of relevant observable inputs and minimizing
the use of unobservable inpuls.

All assats and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the Financial Statements are
categorized within the fair value hisrarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest lavel input thal is
significant Lo the fair value measurcment as a whale:

Level 1 - Ouoled iunadiusted) markel pncas in aclive markets for identical assets or labilitics

Level 2- Valuation technigues for which the lowest leval input thal is significant to the farr value
measurement is directly or indirectly observable

Level 3 -Valualion tachniques for which tha lowest level input that je significant to the fair value
measuremeant is unobservable

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the Financial Slatements on a recuning basis, the
Company detenmines whether transfers heve coourred between levels in the hicrarchy by re-assessing
categorisation (based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measuremen! gz a whaoia)
at the end of each reporting period.

The Company's Management delermines the policies and procedures for both recuring and non -
recurring fair value measurement, such as derivative instruments and Unquoted linancial assets measured
al fair value,

——
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3.4

3.5

At each reporting date, the Management analyses the movements in the values of assets and liabiities
which are required to be re-measured or re-assessed as per the Company's acoounting policies, For this
analysis, the Management verifies the major inputs applied in the latest valuation by agreeing the
information in the valuation computation 19 contracts and ather relevant dotumenls

The management also compares the change in the fair value of each asset and lizbility with relovant
external sources to delermine whether the change is reasonable,

For the purpose of tair value disclosures, the Company has determined classes of assets and liabilties on
the basis of the nature, charactenstics and risks of the asscl or liability and the level of the lair value
hierarchy as explained abave,

This note summarizes accounling policy for fair value. Other fair value related disclosures are given i the
relevant noles.

Nisclosures for valuation melhods sigrificanl estimates and assumptions of Financial instruments
(inchuding those carried at amorlised cost (note 21y and Quantitative disclnsures of far valua measurcimet
hierarchy (note 22),

Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable. The Company
recognizes revenua when the amount of ravenue can be reliably measured; when it is probable thal future
aconomic benefits will flow 1o Lhe entity; and when specific criteria have boen met for the Company's
activities, as described below.

Toll revenue

The income from toll revenue from operations of the facility is accounted on receipt basis

Contract revenue {construction contracis)

Contract revenue associaled with the construction of road is recognized as revenue by reference to the
stage of completion of the projects al the balance sheet date. The stage of complation of project Is
determined by the proportion that contract cost incurred for work performed up lo the balance sheet date
bears to the estimated total contract costs

Contracl cost includes costs that relalo directly to the specific contract and allocated costs that are
attributable to the construction of the toll reads. Cost that cannot be attribuled to the contract activity such
as general administration costs are expensed as incurrad and classified as othar operating expenses

Others
Insurance and other claims are recognized as revenue on certainty of receipt basis,

Income on investment is recognized based on the tenms of the investment, Income from mutual fund
scheme having fixed maturity plans is accounted on declaration of dividend or on maturity of such
investmenls. Interest income is recognised on a lime proportion basis taking inle account the amount
outstanding and the rates applicable. For all other financial assets measured al amorfised cost inlerest
incoma is recorded using the Eflective Interest Hate (EIR}).

Accounting of intangible assets under service concession arrangement

The Company has Toll Road Concession rights where it Designs, Builds, Finances, Operates and
Transfers (DBFOT) infrastructure used to provide public service for a specified period of time. These
arrangemeants may include Infrastructure usad ina public to-privale service concossion arrangemeant for its
entira usaful lifg,

These arrangements are accounted fur based on the nature of the consideralion. |he intangible assct
model is used to the extent that the Company receives a right (a license) to charge users of the public
service. The financial asset model is used when the Company has an upconditional contractual right to
receive cash or another financial asset from or at the direction of the granlor for the construction services.
When the unconditional nght to receive cash covers only part of the service, the two models are combined
to account separately for each component If the Company performs more than cne service (i.e,
construction or upgrade services and operation services) under a single contract or arrangement,
consideration received or receivable is allocatad by reference lo the relative fair values of the services
delivered, whan the amounts are separajesFFiemtisiablo,
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Intangible assets model

Intangible assets arising out of service concession arrangements are accounted for as infangible assets
where the Company has & contractual right to charge users of service when the projacts are completed
Apart from above per the service concession agreement the Cornpany is obligated to pay the amoaunt of
premium fo National Highways Authonty of India (NHAI). This premiumn cbligation has been ireated as
Intangible sszat given it is peid towards getting the right to eam revenue by constructing and operating the
rosds during the concession period,

Hence, the tolal premium payahle'lu the Grantor as per the Service Concession Agresment is also
recognized 28 an 'lntangible Assets’ and tha corresponding obligation for committed premium =
recoanized as premium ohligation,

The inlangible assats is measured at the fair valug of cansideration transferred o acquire asset. which is
the fair value of consideration received or receivable for the construction services deliverad.

Amaortization of concession intangible assets
The Intangible asset recognized are amartised ovel lhe concession penod on the basis of projected {oll
revenue which refiecls the pattarn in which the assets econoimic benefits are consumed. The projected
fotal toll revenue is based on the independant traffic volume Projeclivns; Amortization 13 ravised in casc of
Eny material change in the expected patarn of econemic benefits. Refer note 23 for description and
significant terms of the concession agreements.

Financial assets model

The financial asset model applies when the operator has an unconditional right to receive cash or anothar
financial asset from the grantor in remuneration for concession ssrvices In the case of concesszion
servicas, the operalor has such an unconcitional right if the grantor contractually guarantees the paymant
of amount specified or determined in the contragl or the shortfall, if any, between amounts received from
users of public service and amounts specified or determined in the Confract,

Financial Assets resulting fram application of Appendix A and Appendix B of Ind AS 11 are recorded in the
Balance Sheet under the heading *Other Financial Assets” and recagnized al amortised cost,

However in case of certain arrangements, the contract may include & payment commitment on the par of
the concession grantor covering only part of investment, with the balance to be recovered from by charging
users of senvice . In such arrangements the investmant amount guaranteed by the concession grantor is
recognized under the financial asset model and the residual balance is recognized under the Intangible
esset model,

Any assel carried under concession arrangements s derecognized on disposal or when no future
econamic benefils are expected from ifs future use or disposal or when the contractual rights to the
financial asset expire.

Maintenance obligations

Contractual obligations to maintain, replace or restore the infrastructure (principally resurfacing costs and major
repeirs and unscheduled maintenance which are required to maintain the Infrastructure as=ef in operational
condition except for any enhancemert element] are recognized and measured at the baest estimate of the
expenditure reguired o settle the presant chligation at the balance sheet date far which next resurfacing would
be required as per the concession arrangement The provision is discounted to its pressnt value al g pre-tax
rate that reflects curent markst assessments of the time valus of money and the risks specific to the

fiability. .

Taxes

Current income tax

Lurrant income tax sssats and liabilitics are measured at the amount expected o be recoverad from or
paid to the taxation aulhonties. The tax rates and tax laws used to compute the amount are those that are
enacted or substantively enacted at the reparting date in the countdes where the Company operates and
generales laxable income. Cumenl income tax relating to ilems recognized outside the Statement of Prafi
and Loss is recognized outside the Statemenl of Profit and Loss ieithier in ather comprehensive income or
in equity}. Current tax lems are recognized in correlation to the underlying transaction either in other
comprehensive income o directly in egquity. Management periodically evaluates pesilions taken in the tax
rafurns with respect to situations in which applicable tax regulations are subject to interpretation and
establizhes provisions where appropriate
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3.7

3.8

3.9

Deferred tax

Deferred tax is provided using the balance sheet approach on temporary differences between the tax
bases of assets and liabilties and their carrying amounts for financial reporting purposes at the reporting
data.

Deaferred tax liabilities and assels are recognized for all taxable temporary differences

Ueterred fax assels are recognized for unused (ax losses o lhe axtent thal il is probable that taxable profit
will be available against which the deductible termpaorary differencas, and the carry forward of unused tax
losses can be ulilizad,

The carrying amaunt of deferred tax assels is reviewed at each reporting date and reduced to the extent
that it is no longer probable thai sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of the deferred
tax assel to be utilized, Unrecognized deferred tax 3SSCT5 aie re-assessed at each roporting date and are
recognized lo the extent thal it has hecome probabie that fulure taxable piolits will allow the delerrad tax
asget 1o be recovered

Deferred tax assets and liabililies are measured at the tax rales that are expectad to apply in the year
when the assel is realized or the liability is sellled, based on tax rates {and tax laws) that have been
enacted or substantively enacted at the reporling date.

Deferred tax relating to iterns recognized outside the Statement of Profit and Loss is recognized culside
the Statement of Profit and Loss (either in other comprehensive income ar in equily). Deferred tax iterms
are recognized in correlation to the underlying transaction either in other comprehensive income or directly
in agquity.

Deferred tax assels and deferred {ax liabilities are offset if a legally enforceable right exists to sel off
currenl tax assets against current tax liabilites and the deferrad taxes relata to the same taxable entity and
the same taxaticn aulhonty,

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construclion or production of an assat that
necessarily takes a substantial period of time o get ready for its intended use or sale are capitalised as
part of the cost of the asset. All other boirowing costs are expensed in the period in which they occur,
Borrowing costs consist of interest and other costs that an entity incurs in connection with the borrawing of
funds. Borrowing cost also includes exchange differences to the extent regarded as an adjustment to Lhe
borrowing costs.

Leases

Operating lease payments are recognized as an operaling expense in the income statement on a straight
line basis over lhe lease term.

Premium Determent
Premium Deferral (i.e. premium payable less paid after adjusting premium deferment) is aggregated under

premium deferred obligalion in the balance sheat The interest payahle on the abova is aggregatod under
deferred premium obligation Interest on premium deferral is charged to the Stalement of Profit and Loss

3.10 Contingent liabilities

A conlingant liakility is a possible abligation that anses from past evenls whose existence will be confirmed
by the occumence or non-occurrence of one ar mare uncertain fulure events beyund tha cantrel of the
Company or a present obligation that is not recognised because it is not probsbla that an outflow of
resources will be required to settle the obligation. A contingent lisbility also arises in extremely rare cases
where there is a liabllity that cannat be recognised because it cannot be measured reliably. The conlingent
lability i not recognised in the books of accounts but its existence is disclosed in lhe Financial
Statemenis,
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211 Impairment of non-financial assets

Men-financial assets are tested for imparment whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that the
carrying amount may not be recoverable An impairment leze is recognized for the amount by which the asset's
carrying amount exceeds ils recoverable amount, The recoverable amount is the higher of an asset's fair valye
less costs of disposal and value in use. Eor the purposes of as5e33ing Impairment, assets arg grouped at the
lowesl levals for which there are separalzly identifiable cash inflows which are largely independant of the cash
inflows from other assets or groups of assets {cash-generating units). Mon-finaneial assels that suffered
impairment are reviewed for possible reversal of the impaimment at the end of aach reporting period

3 12Provisions

Provizions are recognized when the Company has a presenl obligatian (egal or constructive) as a resuit of
4 past event, it is probable that an autfleve of resources embedying economic benefits will ha required o
saitle the obligston and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the cbhgation When the
Company expecls some or all of a provision to be reimbursed the reimbursament is rocognized as a
separste asset, but only when the reimbursement is virtually cerlain. The expenge relating to a provision iy
pressnted in the Statemant of Profil and Loes net of any remmbursament,

If the effecl of the time value of money is material, provisions are discounted Lsing a cuirent pre-tax rate
that refiacts, when appropriate, the risks siecific 1o the liakility, When discounting is used, the increase in
the provision due to the passage of tima is recognized as a finance cost

3.13 Employee hencfils
{1} Short term abligations

Liabilities for wages and salaries, including non-monetary benefits that are expected to be seftled wholly
within 12 months afier the end of the pericd in which the employees render the related service are
recognized in respect of employeas’ services up to the end of the reporting period and are measured at
the armounts expected to be paid when the liabiliies are settied. The liabilities are presented as current
emplayee benefit obligations in the balarce sheet,

lii} Leave obligations
The Company provides sick leave and privilege leave to its employeas

Privilege and sick leave obligation 18 provided based on actuarial valuation which takes into account
the estimated portion of leave that will be en-cashed, availed and the portion that will lapse, The
portion that is expected to be en-cashed is provided for based on the basic salary of the employes
and for the portion that is expected to be availed, the valuations are based on the employess' total
compensation. The liability for eamed leave is also classified as current where it is expected to be
availed! en-cashed during the next 12 months, The remaining portion is classified as nen-current, The
amounts of current and non-current liability are based on actuarisl estimates,

(iii} Past - employment obligations

The Company aperates various post-employment schemes, including
{a} defined benefit plans such as gratuity
(b} defined contribution plans such as providant fund,

Gratulty Obligations

The lisbility or asset recognized in the balance shest in respect of defined benefit gratuily plans i=
the present value of the defined benetit obligation at the end of the reporting perind less the fair
value of plan essets. The defined benafit ohbiigation is calculated annually by indepandent actuarios
uzing the projected umit credit method.

The present value of the defined benefit obligation is determined by discounting the estimated futyne
cash autflows by reference to market yiclds al the end of the reporling perictd an government bonds
thal have tarms approximating 1o the terms of the related uhligation

The net interast cost is calculated by applying lhe discount rate to the net balance of the defined
benefil obligation and the fair valug of plan asests. This cost is included [n empleyee benafit expense
in the staternent of profit and loss,
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Re-measurement gains and losses ansing from experience adjustments and changes n actuanal
assumplions are recognized in the period in which they occur, directly in other comprehensive

income. They are included in retainec eamings in the Statement of Changes in Equity and in the
balance sheeat.

Changes in the present value of the definad benefit obligation resulting from plan amendments or
curtailments are recognized immediately in profil or loss as past service cost,

Defined Contribution plans

The Company pays provident fund coniributions to publicly administerad providenl funds as per local
regulations, The Company has no further payment cbligations once the contributions have heen
paid. The contributions are accounted far as defined contribution plans and the conlibutions are
recognized as employee benefit expense when they are due. Prepaid contributions are recognized
as an assel to the extent thal a cash refund or a 1eduction in the Tulura payments is available

3.14 Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents in
deposits with an original maty

changes in value,

For the purpose of the Statarment of Cash
deposits, as defined above, net of outstar

the Company's cash management.

3.15 Derivatives

Derivatives are initially recognized at fair value an

subsequently re-measured to their fair value at the end of each reporting period,

316 Trade Payables

Trade payables are obligations to pay for goods or services that have been acquired in the ordinary course
of business from suppliers. Accounts payable are classified as current liabilities if payment is due within

one year or less (or in the normal operating cycle of the business if

non-currant liakilities.

Trade payables are:recognized initially at fair value and subse

quently measured at amortised cost using

the effective interest method.

317 Financial instrumonts

A financial instrumant is any contract that

gives rise to a financial asset of one antity and a financial liability

ar equity instrument of ancther entity.

Financial assets

Initial recognition and measuremant

All financial assels ars recognised initially at fair valus,
value through Statement of Profit and Loss, net of di
the financial asset Purchases or sales of financial
extablished by regulation or convention in the

trade date, i.e., lhe date that the Company commits to purchase or sell the asset,

For purposes of subsequent measurement, financial assels are classified in following categories,

at amortised cosl
at fair value hiough profit ar loss (FVTPL)
at fair value through other comprehensive incoma (FVTOGH)

the balance shest comprise cash at banks and on hand and shorl-term
rity of threz months or less, which are subject to an insignificant risk of

lows, cash and cash equivalents consist of cash and shori-term

ding bank overdrafls as they are considered an integral part of

the date a derivative contract is entered into and arg

lenger). If not. they are presented as

in the case of financial assels not recorded at fair
reclly alliibutable transaction cost 1o the acquisition of
assets thal require delivery ol assets within a time frame
market place (regular way trades) arc recognised on the
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Financial Assets at amortised cost
Financial assets arc measured at the amortised cost if bath the fallowing conditions are mot:

a) The asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets far collecting contractual
cash flows, and

b} Contractual tenns of the asset gve rise on specified datos Lo cash llows lhat are solcly payrmonts of
principal and interest (SPPI) on the principal amount oulstanding

This category is the most relevant to the Company. All the Loans and other receivables under financial
assels (except Inveslments) are non-derivative financial assels with fixed or determinable payments thal
are not quoted in an achive markot,

After initial meazurement such financial assets are subsequently measured at amortisod cost uzing the
Effective Inlerest Rate (EIR} methnd Ambrtised coet is caloulaled by taking inlo account any discount or
Rramium on acquisition and fees or costs thal sre an integral part of the EIR. The EIR amorication i5
inciuded in finance income in the Staterment of Profit and Loss. The losses ansing fram impairment are
recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss. This category generally applies to loans and other
raceivablos.

Financial Assets at Fair Value through Statement of Profit and Loss/Other Comprehensive Income

All investmenls in scope of Ind AS 109 are measured at fair value. Tha Company has investment in mutual
funds which are held for trading, are classified as at FVTPL. The Company makes such election on an
instrument by instrument basis. The classification is made on inilial recognition and is irrevecable.

If the Company decides to classify an instrument as at FYTOCI, then all fair value changes on the
instrumant, excleding dividends, are recognized in the Other Camprehensive Incame. There is no recycling
ol the amounts from Other Comprehensive Income (OCI) to the Statement of Profit and Loss. even on sale
of investment. Howaver, the Company may transfer the cumulative gain or loss wilhin equity. Instruments
Included within the FVTPL category are measured at fair value with all changes recognized in the
Staternent of Profit and Loss

De-recognition

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset or part of the Company's similar financial
assets} is primarily derecognized (i.e. removed from the Company's balance sheet) when:

The nights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired, or

The Company has transferred its rights 1o receive cash flows from the aszet or has assumed an obligation
o pay the received cash flows in full without material delay to a third parly under a ‘mass-through’
arrangement; and either {a) the Company has transferrod substantially all the risks and rewards of the
asset, or (b) the Company has neither trans ferred nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of the
assel, but has transferred control of the aszet,

When the Company has transferred its rights to receive cash fiows from an asset or has entered into a
pass-lhrough arrangement, it evaluates if and to what extent it has retained the risks and rewards of
awnership. When it has neither transferred nor retained substantially all of the risks and rewards of the
assat, nor fransferred cantral of the assel, lhe Company continues to recagnize the fransterred assot to the
extent of the Company's continuing invalvement. In that case, the Company also recognizes an associaled
liability. The transferred asset and the associated liability are measured on bagis that reflects the nghts
and obligalions that the Company has retained.
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Impairment of financial assets

The Company assesses an a forward losking basis the expecied cradit losses associated with its assets
carried at amorlised cost and FYQQCH The impairment methodology applied depends on whether there has
been a significant increase in cradit risk,

The Company has three lypas of financia assels subject lo Ind AS 109’s expected credil loss madel:
*  Loans receivables maasured at amortised cost

*  Retenlions receivable, grant receivabla from NHAI
* Loans given lo employees

Ihe impairment methodology for each class of financial assets stated above is as follows:

Leoans receivables measured at amortised cost: Loans receivables at amortised cost are generally short
term in nature considered o be low risk, and thus the impairment provision is determineg as 12 manths
expecled cradit losses,

Loans given to emplayees: For loans given lo employees outstanding as on the reporting dates, the has
determined reliably that assessing the probability of default at the initial recognition of each and every [pan
or receivable would result in undue cost and effart. As permitted by Ind AS 108, the credit provision will be
determined based on whether cradit risk is low anly at each reporting date, until the loan is derecognizaed.
Using tha impairment methodology the Chmpany has assessed that no loan loss allowance needs to be
recorded in the books of accounts,

Expected credit loss {ECL") impairment loss allowance {or reversal) recognized during the pericd is
racognized as income/! expense in the Statement of Profit and Loss (P&L). This amount is reflected under
the head 'other expenses' in the P&L. The balance sheet presentation for various financial instruments is
described balow:

Financial assets measured as at amortized cost and other contractual revenue receivables - ECL is
presented as an allowance, (e | as an infegral part of the measurement of those assels in the balance
sheel. The allowance reduces the net carrying amount. Until the asset meets write-ofl criteria, the
Company dees not reduce impairment allowance from the grass carrying amount,

Financial Liahilities

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial liabilities are classified, at initial rzcognition, as financial liabilities at fair value through Statement
af Profit and Loss, loans and borrowings, trade payables or other payables,

All financial liabilities are recognized inilially at fair value.

The Company's financial liabilites include trade and cther payables, loans and barrewings including bank
overdrafis and other payables,

Subsequent measurement
The measurcment of financial liabilities depends on their classification, as describad helow:
Loans and borrowings

Ifus is the category most relevant to the Company After initial recegnition, interesl-beanng lnans and
borrowings are subsequently measured =t amartised cost using the LIR method. Howaver. the Company
has borrowings at floating rates. The impast of restatement of effective interest rate, year on year due to
resel of interest rate, is not material, Gairs and losses ara recognized in Statement of Profit and Loss
when the liabilities are derecognized as well as through the transaction cost amartization process.

Retention money payable

This is the category most relevant to the Cempany. Retention moneys are measured al Fain valua initially.
Subsequently, they are measured at amartised cost using the EIR (Effective interest rate) method. Gains
and losses are recognized in Statement of 2rofit and Loss when the liabilities are derecognized as well as
through the EIR amortization process
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3.18

3.19

De-recognition

A financial liability is derecognized when the obligation under the liability is discharged or cancelled or
expires. When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same lender on substantially
different terms, or the terms of an auisting liability are substantially modified. such an exchange or
madification is treated as the de-recognition of the ariginal ligbility and the recognition of & new liability
The difference in the respective carrying amounts is recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss

Offsetting of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the nat amount is reported in the balance sheel if
there is a currenlly enfercaable legal right to offset the recognized amaounts and there is an intention o
setlle on a net basis, lo realize the assels and settie the liabilities simultaneously,

Derivative financial instruments
Initial recognition and subsequent measursment

The Company uses derivative financial instruments —principsl only swaps to hedge its foreign CLTENCY
risks. Such derivative financial instrumenis are initially recognized at far value on the dale on which a
derivative contract is entered into and ara subseguently re-measured at fair valug, Derivatives are carricd
as financial assels when the fair value iz positive and as financial liabilities when the fair value is nggative,

Any gains or losses arising from changes in the fair value of derivalives are taken directly 1o Statement of
Frofit and Loss.

Segment information

The Company is engaged in "Road Infrastructure Project” which in the context of Ind AS 108 “Operating
Segment” is considered as the only segment. The Company’s activities are restricled within India and
hence, no separale geographical segment disclosure is considered necessary.

Critical accounting estimates and judgements

Estimates and judgements are continually, evaluated and are based on historical experience and other
factors, including expectations of future events thal may have a financial impact on the entity and that are
believed to be reasonable under the circumstances.

The Company makes estimates and assumplicns concerning the future. The resulting accounting estimales
will, by definition, seldom equal the relsied actual results. The estimates and assumptions thal have a
significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amount of assets and liabilities are disclosed
below.

(i} Applicability of service concession arrangement accounting to toll roads concessionaire
arrangements

'he Company has determined that Appendix A of Ind AS 11 ‘Service concession arrangemenis’ is
applicable o the Company which provides on accounting by the operators for public-to-private sarvice
concession arrangements. The Company has enlered into concessian amrangement with NHAI as per which
the Company would participate in the Design, Build, Finance, Operate and Transfer (DBFO) basis the tol
roads infrastructure. After the end of the conceszion amangement, the Company has to transfor the
infrastructure i.e. toll roads constructed to National Highway Authorities of India (NHAI}

Accordingly the Company has recognized (he intangible assats recogniced as per the accounting policy
mentivned in Note no 3.5 *Acceunting of intangible assels under service Coneassionaire arrangement’.

(ii) Incame taxes

The Company has recognized deferred tax assets relating to carried forward tax losses to the extent lhera
are sufficient laxable tempaorary differences relating to the same taxation autharity against which the unused
tax losses can ba utilized. However, the utilization of tax losses also dapands on the ability of the Company
o satisly certain tests at the time the lossas are recouped. Management has forecasted future taxable
profits and has therefare mcugnizﬁ%@_&g@i&x assets in relation to tax losses, -

- hReS

| |
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{iii}Amaortization of concession intangitle assets

The Intangible asset recognized are amcorlised over the concession pericd on the basis of projected toll
revenue which reflects the pattern in which the assels cconomic bencfits are consumed. The projectad lolal
toll revenue is based an the independerd trafiic valume projections, Amorization js revisod in casc of any
material change in the expecied pattern ol economic benslils

(iv) Impairment of concession intangible assects

The Company tests intangible assets and cash generating units have suffored any impairment, in
accordance with the accounting policy stated In note 3.171. The recoverable amount of sach cash
generaling unit has been determined based on the grealer of value in-use and fair value less costs to sell
calculations. These calculations require the use of assumptions regarding traffic flows, dgiscount rates,
growth rates and othe: factors affecting tperating activities of the cash gensrating units.

(v} Fair valuation of derivatives and other financial instruments

The fair value of financial instruments that are not raded in an aclive market is determined using valustion
technigues, The Campany uses its judgments o selact a varicty of mathads ang makas assumplions hat
are mainly based on market conditions existing al each balance sheet date.

{vi} Provision for resurfacing obligation {major maintenance expendifure)

The Company records the resurfacing obligation for its present cbligation as per the concession
arrangement to maintain the toll roads at every five years during the concession period. The provision is
included in the Financial Statements at the present value of the oxpected futurn payments. The calculations
lo discount these amounts to their present value are based an the estimated timing of cxpendilure oCouring
on the roads.

The discount rate used to value the resurfacing provision at its present value is determinad through
reference to the nature of provision and risk associated wilh the expenditure
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Note 4 - Intangible assets {including intangible assets under development)

T Millions

Toll Collection

Intangible assels

Particulars :

rights under development
Net carrying amount as at 1st April 2015 3995922 546.41
Year ended March 2016
Opening yross carrying amount 416734 £46.41
Additions 818.18 (28.24)
Disposals 018.14
Elnsing Qross carrying amount 4,885.50 -
Accumulated amortization and impairment
Opening accumulated smortization and impairment 168.12
Amarlization charge for the year 124 .67
Disposals
Clnsiﬁg' accumulated amortization and impairmont 29279
Met carrying amount 4,392.71 -
Year ended March 2017
Opening gross carrying amaount 4.685.50 Z
Additions s
Disposals
Closing gross carrying amount 4,685 50 i
Accumulated amortization and Impainrent
Cpening accumulated amortization and impairment 29279 -
Amorlization charge for the year 14463 =
Disposzals -
Closing accumulated amortization and impairment : 437 42
Met carrying amount 4,248.08
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Note 5 - Financial Asscts - Current

Particulars

Mote 5 (a) - Cash and Cash cquivalents

Cash and cash equivalents
Balances with banks
N current accounts

Cash on hand

Note 5 (b) - Other financial assets - current

Grant reccivable from NHA|

sSecirity doposils

Retention money receivable from NHA|
Olhars :
Claims receivable from MES|

MNote 6 - Other non-current asscts
Gratuity Advance

Mote 7 - Other Current assots

Advance lo vendaors
Advance lo employees
Prepaid Expenses

Duties and taxes receivable

2 Millions
As at As at As at
31st March, 2017 March 31, 2016 April 01, 2015
45.63 513 20.67
1.43 1.41 1.18
47 .06 10.54 21.83
3 : 17.868
0.02 Q.02 u.ne
5.91 5.90 5.14
= 011
2.89 a .
14.82 5.92 23.13
0.42 0,06
0.42 - 0.06
2.82 245 2.00
0.8z 0.40 033
.52 0.52 0.53
597 15.68 34.87
10.13 19.05 37.53
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Note & - Share Capital and Other eguity

Mote 8a - Authorised Share Capital

1 Millions
— 3 : —_— N - e
Barliuii Nos of Shares As al As at _As at
31st March, 2017 I1st March, 2016 April 01, 2015
Al the heginning of tha year 54, 00,000 Ga, 00 84 00 a4 .00

Add Increase during the yoar

At the end ol the year &4 00,000 B4 ) 654,00 B4.00

Note 8b - Issued, subseribed and paid-up equity
share capital

Al the beginning of the yeur 10,704 Q11 311 AR

Add - InGreasc dunng the year

At the end of Lhe year 10,704 011 011 [RE

Note 8¢ - Terms and rights allached to aequity shares

The Company has only one class of shares referred to as Equity Shares having a Par Value of Rs 10/-

Note 8d - Reconciliation of nos of Shares

MNos of Shares at the beginning of the year/quarter 10,704 10,704 10,704
Add : Mos of Shares izsusd during the year/quarer - - -
Moz of Shares at the end of the year/quarter 10,704 10.704 10,704

Note Be - Shares held by the Sponsor

Company or their subsidiaries/associales

Reliance Infrasiructure Limiled

(Immediate and Ultimate Hoiding Campany) 10,703 5,134 5,138
AAL Communication Private Limited - 2783 2783
Jiangsu Provincial Transportation Engineenng Group Co, Lid - 2783 2783

Nate 8f - Details of Sharcholders halding more than 5% shares

Reliance Infrastructure Limited

Mos of Shares 10,703 5,138 5,138
% of halding 100% 48%, A8%
Jiangsu Provineial Transportation Enginecring Group Co,Ltd

Mos af Shares - 2782 2783
Y of halding - 26%: 2B4%
AAN Cominunication Private Limited

MNos of Shares - 2THA 2TE3
¥ ol holding - 28% 26%

The Sponsor has pledged 5138 Equity Shares tor availing various term loans
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MNote 83 - Sub-ordinated deht {in nature of equity)

S 1 Millions
Particulars . As at As at Asg at
Mst March, 2017 st March, 2018 April 01, 2015
At the beginning of the yeariguarter 1,100 50 04,30 BEE A0
Increase  (decrease] during the YEEr 221,00 20500 . 215590
At the end of the year/quarter o 133031 1,109.30 904 20

Terms and rights attached to Sub-ordinated debts infused by Sponszor alangwith its Subsidiaries

i} Subordinated dabt is the part of Sponzars Equity from the promaters of the cornpany for tho project, which is unseoured and interast froe as per
Curnrman | oan agrecmenl with the lenders,

1) Mo repayment/redemption/intarest servicing allowed during the moratarium period of he long term project loan,

Mote 9b - Corporate Guarantee (in nature of equity)
Al the beginning of the yeariquarter 32,50 3250 32 50

Increase / {decrease) duning tha yea riquarter &

At the and of the yearlquarter 3250 2 3250 32.5[!_ _
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Particulars

Asz at
31st March, 2017

T Millions
Az at As at
31st March, 2016 April 01, 2015

Note Sc - Retained Earnings

Al the beginning of the year/quarter
Met Profit for the Period

lterms of other comprehensive income recognised
directly in retained samings
- Remeasuremens of post-employements
obligations (net of tax)

Liwvidends paid during the year
At the end of the year/quarter

(444.05) {213.63)
(200.11) (230.39) |

0.3a (0.03)
(643.78) (444 05) {213 53)
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Note 10 - Borrowings - Non current

T Millions
Particulars As at Az at As al
31sl March, 2017 March 31, 2016 April 01, 2018

Secured
Term loans
From banks

Rupee term Inan 3.308.20 3,482 20 3,723.29
Total g 3,308.20 3,482.20 3,723.29

1) Rupae Term Loan from Banks -

Ihe Borrowings are secured by the way of lerms stated in Commen Loan Agraement enterad between the company and Consoartium of
lendars:-

(i) & first ranking par passy murigage/charge over all the Boirower's immoveable and movahla praperties, both present and lutura,
excapl the Praject Assels.

{ii) & first ranking pari passu charge on all the Borrower's bank accounts including, but not limited ta the Escrow Account/ iis Sub-
Accounts where all revenues, Disbursemenis, receivables shall be deposited and in all funds from time to time deposiled thoeren and in
all Peritlad Investments or ather secuiilies representing all amounts credited to the Escrow Account,

(i) & first ranking pari passu charge on all movable tangible and intangible asscts of the Borrower (other than those specified in
paragraphs (i) above and (iv) helow) ncluding but not limited to its goodwill, undertaking and uncalled capital, both presenl and future
except the Project Assets

{iv) a firsl ranking pari passu charge over / assignment of the right, title, interests, benefits, claims and demands of the Borower in, to
and under any letter of credit, guarantees {excep! the guarantees issued in favour of NHAI) including contractor guarantees and
liguidated damages and performance bond provided by any party to the Project Documents,

(¥} Repayment Terms ~ The repayment of loan will start from 31 Dec 2013 in 34 guarterly inslallmenls and will be paid il 31 March
2022

{vi} the applicable interast rate for Rupee Term Loan varies from 11.00% to 12.00% p-a.

2) The Company has provided Corporate Guarantee in form and manner satisfactory lo the lenders as per Common Loan Agreement.

MNote 11 - Trade Payables

Due to other than Micro and Small Enterprises 5121 27.59 B3.78
Lue lo Micro and Small Enferprizses

51.21 27.55 CERT

{a) Dues to Micro and Small Enterpriscs

Disclusure of payable to vendors as defined under the "Micre, Emall and Medium Enterprise Development Act, 2006" is based on the
information available with the Company regarding the slatus of registration of such vendors under the said Acl, s8 per the intimalion
recaived from them on requests made by the company, There are no overduc principal amountsfinterast payable amounts for delayed
payments to such vendors al the Balance Sheel date. There are no delays in paymenl made to such supphars during the year or for
any earlier yaars and accoidingly there is no interest paid or dutstanding imterest in this regard in respect of paymants made dunng Lhe
yoar ar brought forward from previous WEArs,

Mote 12 (a) - Other tinancial liabilities - currant 2 Millions
Particulars As at As at As at

31st March, 2017 March 31, 2016 April 01, 2015
Current Maturities of long term debt 17512 175,12 5038,
Sacurity Deposils 4.20 4,20
Other Payable f1.24 .98 0.03
Felention money payable 103.60

Total 339.96 180.30 az.et_:.‘
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JR Toll Road Pvt Ltd

Notes to Financial Statements

Mote 12 (b) - Other financial liabilities - Non - current

MNon - Current

Retention monay payable . 8804 87,70

Total e g8.0a 87.70

Mote 13 (a) - Provisions - Current

Current
Frovision for employee benefits
- Leave encashment .01 003 0.0
0.01 ~ 0.03 0.08
Note 13 (b} - Provisions - Non - Current
Provisinn far enpluyes henefiis
Graluily . 0.0
- Loave encashment 14 .73 0.48
Chers
Resurtacing expenses 28280 22523 127.97
282.94 22597 128 45
Movement of Resurfacing provisions is as follows:
At the beginning of the yearfguarer 22523 127.97 48.497
Charged / (credited) to profit or loss
additional Provision recognised 44 47 81.90 7313
unused amount reversed
urwinding of discount 13.10 1536 5 88
Amount utilised during the year -
At the end of the year/quarter 2280 44523 127597

Resurfacing provisions - significant estimates

As per the service concession arrangement with NHAL the Comapny is obligated 1o carry out resurfacing of the roads under
concession, The Company estimates the likely provision required towards resurfacing and accrues the costs on a straight line basis
over the period al the end of the which resurlacing would be required, in the Statemant of Prafit and Loss in accordance with Ind AS 37
' Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Aszets.

Nate 14 - Other current liabilities

Dulies and taxes payable 204 1.67 i 66
2.04 1.67 0.66
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2 Millions

Particilars Year ended Year endeod
March 31, 2017 March 31, 20186

Note 15 - Revenue
Uperating income

- Income from toll callections 415.590) 4385 54

Cther Oparating income

- Compensation towards tol| SUSPENSI0n 3618 -
45206 438,54

Naote 16 - Other income

Unndend Income an current invesiment - Q.50
Interest income
- Un financial assels carriad at amorised cost - 214
- Untixed deposils 022
- Cthers .14 1.15
Excess provision for Leave Freashment/Graluity wiitlen back 0.82 ;
Miscellaneous incame 0.00 =
.98 3.79
Mote 17 - Toll Operation and Maintainence CcEpeEnses
Subcontracting expenses 34.27 38,3
Maintainence of Roads f68.03 105.02
Electricity expensas 710 .09
Handling Charges 0.85 1.14
Site and other direct expenses 7.23 8.28
125 58 TG0 84

Note 18 - Employee benefits expenses

Salaries wages and bonus 3.10 4.40
Contribution to provident funds and other funcs 0.18 0.23
Gratuity 0.15 012
Leave encashment - 0.21
Stafll welfare expeonses 0.10 016

3.53 5,12

MNote 19 - Finance Costs

Interest on loan 400,08 404 32
Unwinding of discount on pravisions 13.10 15.36
Other finance charges 40,96 45 32
Unwinding of discount on retention money 10.45 0.36
= 464.60 475.36
Note 20 - Other cxpenses
Rent oo
Rales & taxes 0.46 012
Inzurance 167 L2
Legal and Professional Chargas 16,91 5,89
Auditers Remuneration 064 044
Travelling and Conveyance 0.71 0.80
Cther miscellansous expanses 1.44 2015

21.85 3043
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Note 21 - Fair value measurements

Financial Instruments by catagory
@ Signficance of financial instrumenis T Millions

Particulars As at As at As at
J1st March, 2017 Ist March, 2016 1st April, 2015

Financial assety
At amortised Cost

Security Deposits 0oz 0.0z .02
Retention Money receivable from NHAI 5.91 690 814
Cash and Cash equivalent 47 06 10,54 21.83
Claims receivable fram NEAI 289 -

Total linancial assets _B1.A7 1647 44.96_

Financial liabilities

At amartised Cost

Flaating Rele Borrawings 344,32 36ET 32 aveiey
Trade Payablas 51.29 27.50 63.78
Retention money payable 103.60 B2 &r.7T8
Security Deposils 420 420
Employes Benefits Payable 61.24 0498 0.0z

Total financial liabilities : 3700.38 377813 39377
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Note 22 - Fair value Hierarchy

+ Millions
{a) Fair value hierarchy - Recurring fair value measurcments

As al Sl CAsal As at
st March, 2017 J1st March, 2016 1st April, 2015

Financial assets

At Fair value through profit & logs
Level 1
Mutual Tund Investmonts

latal financial assots ' E:

Financial liabilities
Derivatives not designated as hedges
Level 2
Frincipal swap 3

lotal financial liabilities

{b) Fair value hierarchy - Assets and liabilities which are measured at amortised
cost for which fair values are disclosed

As at As at - As at
31st March, 2017 d1st March, 2016 1st April, 2015

Financial assets

Level 3
Grant receivable from NHAI - - 17.86
Total financial assots = . 17.86

Financial liabilities

Level 3

Flealing Rate Borrawings 3,486 42 3 658 G2 3,790.57
Relention money payable 103.60 85.04 8770
Total financial liabilities i 3590.03 3746.96 3878.27

Recognised fair value measurements

Level 1: Level 1 hierarchy includes financial instruments measured using quoted prices. This includes mutual funds that have
quoled price. The mutual funds are valued using the closing NAV,

Level 2: The fair value of financial instruments that are nut traded in an active markot {lor axample, over-the-counter derivatives) is
determined using valuation techniques which maximise the use of observable market data and rely as little as possible on ontily-
specific estimates. Il all significant inputs required to fair value an instrument are obse vahle, the instrument is included in level 2.

Level 30 IF one or more of the significant INpuls is not based on ubservable markel data, the instrument is included in level 3 This is
the case o borrawings, debenlures, Rerention i wney payable and hedging derdvative included in level o

Valuation technique used to determine fair value

Specific valuation techniques used to value financial instruments include:

* the use of guoted market prices or dealer quotes for similar instrumenls

* the fair value of forward fareign exchange contracts ang principal swap is determinad using forward aexchange rates al lhe halance
sheel date

* the fair value uf the remaining financial nstruments is determined using discounted cash flow analysis
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{c} Fair value of financial assets and liabilities measured at amortised cost T Millions

As at As at As at
31st March, 2017 31st March, 2016 158 April, 2018

Financial assets

Carrying value of financial assets at amortised cost
Grant receivable from NHAI - . 17.86

Total Financial assels at amortised cost - - 17.86

Fair value of financial assets carried at amoprtised cost
Crant recaivable from NHAI - - 176G

Total Fair value of financial assets at amortised cost g ' s : 17.86

Financial liabilitics

Carrying value of financial liabilities at amortised cost

Floating rate borrowigns 348432 3.657.32 178167
Hatention maoney 103 60 B8.04 ar.vo
= - AR 3,745.36 3,869.37
Fair value of financial liabilities carried at amertised cost
Flnating rate borrowigns 3486 42 3.558.02 379057
Retention maoney 103.60 8504 g7.70
3,590.03 3,746.06 387827

The carrying value amounts of fixsd deposits, interest accrusd on depoists, relention maney recaivable, insurance claim receivable
cash and cash eguivalents,

Irade payables, inferest accrued, amployes benefits payable and creditors for capital expenditure approximate their fair value due 1o
their shart terrn nature.

For financial aszets and liabilities that are measurad at fair value, the carrying amounts are equai lo the fair values.
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Note 23 - Concession arrangements - Main features T Millions
Name of Description of the |Significant terms of the drrangement intangible Assets Financial Asset
entity arrangement Gross book ] Net book value
N ) value
JR Tall Road [Financing, design, enod of concession: 2010 - 2028 March 31, 2017 | March 31, 2017 | March 31, 2017
Privais building and operation |Remunaeration * Tall 4.685.50 4,248.08
Limited ol 52 kilometre leng  |lnvestmant grant from concession March 31, 2016 | March 31, 2016 | March 31, 2016
four lane toll road grantor ; Yes
between Jaipur and  |infrastiucture return 4t the end of 4 BH5.50 4,392 71 .
Feengus cn National soncession penod © Yes
Highway 11 Investment arid ranawal obligations -
Mil
Re-pricing dates | Yearly
Basis upon which re-pricing ar re- April 1, 2015 April 1, 2015 Aprii 1, 215
negotiation is determined © Inflation
Fremium payable to grantor + Mil 4,167.34 &3 954822 1786
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Note 24 - Financial risk management
The Company activities exposes it io market risk, liquidity nek and credit risk
This note explains the source of risk which the entity is exposed to and how the entity Is manage

the risk,
Risk Sxposure arising  Measurement Management

from

Credit risk Caszh and cash Aging analysiz  Diversification of
equivalents, trade  Cradit ralings  bank deposits, credi
reciivakles, limits and letters of
fimancial assels credit
medsured st
amartised cost.

Market risk — foreign exchange Racognized Cash flow Actively Managed
fnancial assets and forecasting
liatulities not Sensitivity
cengminated in analysis
Ihcian rupes (INR)

Markel sisk — interest rate Lomg-lerm Sensitivity Aclively Managed
torrowings at analysis
variahle
Fates

Liguidity risk Earrowings and Rolling cash Availability of
other liabilities flow forecasts  committed credit

ines and borrowing
facilities

The Company risk management is carried out by a project finance loam and central treasury team (group treasuny) under polices approved by
board of directors. Group reasury identifics. evaluates and hedges financial nsk in close co-operation with (he Qroup's operaling units The
Management of the company provides written pnnciples fo- overall risk management, as wall as policies covanng specfic areas such as
Interest rate risk and credit risk, use of derivative financial instrument and non-derivative financial instrurment, and investments of excess
liguidity.

Commaodity risk:

The Company requires for implementation {construction, operation and maintenance) of the projects, such as cement. bitumen, steel and other

construction materials, For which, the Company entered into fixed price contract with the EPC contractor and O&M Contraclor so as to manage
LU BAposUre Lo price increases in raw materials. Hence, the sensitivity analysis is not required

Market risk — intcrest rate risk
The Bank loans follows floating rates with resets defined under agreements. While intarest rate fluctuations carry a risk on financials, the
preject SPY eam toll income which is inked to WP thus providing a natural hedge to the interest rate risk,

a) Interest rate risk exposure + Millions
: As at As at : As at
_ Particulars i1st March, 2017 31st March, 2016 1st April, 2015
Variable Rate Bormowings 3,484 32 3,857 .32 3,781.67
Fixed Rate Burrowings = £ -
Total 3,484.32 3657.32 3,781.67
Sensitivity

Proht or loss is sensitive 1o higherlower interest income frem borrowings as a result of changes in intercst rates.

As al As al T As at
Impact on profitiioss after tax 31st March, 2017 31st March, 2016 1st April, 2015

Interest rates (increase) by 1 basis points (27.53) (28.89) {29.88)
Interast rates decrease by 1 basis points 2753 28.89 28.88
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Liguidity risk

Liquidity risk is tha risk that the Company may not be able to meel its
unaceeptable losses. The Company objeclive is Lo, at all times mai
requirements. The Company closely moni
sources of financing including debt fram b
the financial liabilities. The average credit period take
be a reasenable approximation of fai

The table balow analyses the group's non-derivative financial liabilties and net-

maturily groupings based on the remaining period =t the balance sheat date to

habilties are meluded in the analysis if their contraclusl makaritios
flows, | he amaounts disclosed

sellled derivative financial liabilitics inlu relevant
the contractual matunty date. Derivalive finanrial
are eszential for an undarstanding of
in the table are the contractual undizcounted cash fows,

the bming of the cash

present and future cash and cullaleral abligations without INCUrTirg
ntain optimum levels of liquidity to mee
lorg ite liquidity position and deploys a robusi ca
anks al an optimized cost. The liquidity risk
n to sefile trade payables is
rvalue. The following lable analyses

L its cash and collateral
sh management aystem. |t maintaine adequate
is managed on the basis of expected malurily dates of
about 30 to 60 days. The CArying amoeunls are assumecd to
financial fiabilities by ramaining conlractual maturitios,

¥ Millians
As al 31st March, 2017 Less than 3 Between 3 Between 1 ycar  Botween 2 QOver 5 Total
months months and 1 and 2 years years and 5 yoars
year years
Man-derivalives
Horrawings 43.78 131.34 20430 1,264 56 186648 351056
Trade and other payahbles 12.80 38,40 51.21
Other financial liabilities 107.68 B1.24 - - - _168.82
Total nan-derivatives 164.26 230.99 204.30 1,264.66 1.866.48 373065
As at March 31, 2016 Less than 3 Between 3 Between 1 year  Between 2 Over 5 Total
months months and 1 and 2 years years and 5 yoars
year ycars
MNor-derivatives
Borrowings 4378 131.34 17512 846.36 2489.08 368568
Trade and other payables .80 2068 - - - 27.59
Other financial liabilities - 5.18 102 .57 - - 107.75
Total non-derivatives 50.68 157.21 277.69 846.36 2.489.08 387101
As at 1st April, 2015 Less than 3 Between 3 Between 1 year Betwecn 2 Over 5 Total
months months and 1 and 2 years years and 5 years
year years
Non-derivatives
Borrowings 18.46 107.02 175.12 642 .08 266848 3B12.18
Trade and other payables 15.95 47,84 - 63,78
Olher financial liabilites 14.31 10167 - 115.58
Total non-derivatives 35.41 168.16 175.12 743.75 2,868.48 3898182
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Note 25 - Capital risk management
The Company objectives when managirg capital are toa
. safeguard their ability to continue as a going concern, so that thay ean conlinue lo provide returns far
shareholders and benefits for other stakeholders. and
. Maintain an optimal capital structure to reduce he cost of capilal.

For the purpose of the company capital managemeant, capilal includes issucd equity capital, share premium, sub-debls and ali
nther equity 1eserves attributable to the equity holdars of the parent. The primary ohjective of he company capital
management is o maximize the shareholder value.

The Company manages s capital struclure and makes adjustments in light of changes in cconomic conditions and lhe
requirements of the financial covenants. To maintain or adjust the capilal structure, the Comapny may adjust tha dividend
payment to sharchulders, return capital lu shareholders or issue interast free sub-ordinale debi, The Lompany monitors capital
using a yearing ratio. which is net debt divided by lotal capital plus nel debt. The Company pnlicy is to keep optimum gearing
ratin. The Company ncludes within net debt interes bearing Ioans and boriowings, trade payables. less cash and cash
cguivalents

In arder o achiave this overall obiedive, the Company capital managament, amaorgst ulher things, aims o cnsure that it mocts
financial covenants attached to the inlerest-bearing loans and borrowings that defing capital struclure reqguirements No
changes were made in the objectives, palicies or procasses for managing capital for the financial year ended March 31, 2017
and March 31, 2018,

Consistent with others in the industry, the group manitars capital on the basis of the following gearing ratio:
Net debt including total borrowings (net of cash and eazh equivalents)
divided by
Total ‘equity’ (as shown in tha balance sheet).

e Company strategy is to maintain a dabt to equity ratic within 1.86 to 6.00.The gearing ratios at March 31, 2017 and March

31, 2016 were as follows:

~ T Millions
Particulars As at As at As at

31st March, 2017 J1st March, 2016 1st April, 2015
Met debil [al 343727 3.646.78 3,758 i5
Equity (b} 719.14 5497 86 72328
Net debt to equity ratio (a) / {b) 4,78 5.23 5.20
'F‘arﬁcutars As at As at As at

J1st March, 2017 31st March, 2018 1st April, 2015
Met debl (&) 3.,437.27 3.646.78 3,758 .85
Equity (L) 719.14 GU7 BG 723 28
Mebi debl plus Equity (c = a+b) 4 156.40 4 34464 448317
Gearing ratio {a) / ¢ 0.83 0.84 [ 4
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JIToll Road Pyt Tad

MNutes o Financiad Statements

Mate 26 - Earning Por Share

Particulars

Year ended
March 31, 2017

Year ended
March 31, 2018

Prafit / Loss atlntuitable to cguity shareholders (Rs Millions) {A)

Weighted average number of egquity shares for basic and diluted
garungs per share (B}

Earnings / (L.oss) per share (Basic and diluled) (Rupees) [A/B)

Morminal value of equity sharcs (Rupees)

(200.11)

10,704

(18,694.45)

10.00

(230.39)

10,704

(21,523.44)

1000
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JR Toll Road Pyt Ltd
Hotes to Financial Statoments

Mate 27 - Taxation

27{&) Income tax pxpenae

1 Millions

| March 31, 2017 March 31, 2016
{a} Income tax cxpense [
Current tax
Current fax on profits fur the vear 0.63
(Adiiistments for currant tax of prior periods ) -
Tatal current tax expense {8 0.63 |
Defarred tax
Ikzeremsal{increase) in doferred tax assats [163.66) {180.34)
-:Jk:uqasu}.!'incraam in deferod lax ligbilities 56 62 56.01
Tatal deferred tex oxpenseliboncfit] (B} (107.04) (12433
Income tax oxponse (4 + B} (107.04) (123.70)
Income tax expense is atirlbutable to:
Profit from continuing uperations -
| Profit from discontinued uperation -
Z7 (h) Reconclliation of tax vxpense and the accounting proflt multiplied by India's tax Fate:
March 31, 2017 March 31, 2016 |
Prafit fram continuing operations befara incame 1ax XpEnSe {307.15) {354.08)
Frafit fram discontinulng operation bofore income tax A PEE0 - 4]
Tax al the Indian tax rate of 34.608% {106.30) (122 .54)
Tew effect af amounts which are nat deductinle {12able) in caleulating
laxeble incamas:
SEC-37 amount of any lisbilily of & cantingant nalure - .09
Any odher exemp Income-Mutual Fund Dividand- - (017 |
Expensas nat debited 1o slatemant of PEL and sllowable far income tax 10.86)
SE0-37-Any oiher amaunt not allowable usdar sechion 37-Sarvice Tax q4.57
Credit - Prior Yaar g
SEC-37-Amaunt of any liability of a contingent nature-Provisian - a.62
Cihis femparary differences (0.74) (5.41)
Income tax expense charged to statoment of Profit and Loss (107 04) [123.70}
£7(c) Deferred tax (liability) | Azsel T Millions
The balance comprises temporary differences attributable to
: Az at As at Ag at
Particulars 3MstMarch, 2017 March 31,2016  April 1, 2015
Unused tax losses camed fonsard 50652 38711 22071
Intargible agsets
Tall collacticn rights (213.08) (156 48) (76,23
Irtangibls asseis under development - 0.oo iufzﬂ.?:l:a
Other items |
Grant recaivable from MHAI - - {6 18}
Barrowings (B.08) (9.61) [12.55)
MR Prowvisiond Retention Money 646 7202 A5 HE
Retirarment benoedit obligation 0,05 0.2 018
Mt dleforrad tex (Tabilltyfasset 38087 7403 148,68
27} - - Movemeont in defereed Lax liability ! assat
Unused Tax  Intangible ossets - e nE:JI::'-:“Eh Othier iteris Total
Losses toll eoliection rights divslkiantaat
Particulars i
As at April 01, 2015 2307 {TE.23) 124 22) 14 42 14083
Charged!{creditcd) during the year
to profit or loss 138 41 {8023} 2472 4383 124,33
ta olher comprehonsive income 5 - 0.0z L2
Ag at March 31, 2015 36741 {156.46) 0.00 B3.37 274,03
Ag at April 01, 2018 JET 11 (155,48) 0,00 63 37 274.03
Chargedfcredied] during the guarter
i profit o [oss 13940 {56 82} [0 00} 24 26 L
to other comprehensive income 9 - x £0.20] 2y o,
As at March 31, 2017 506.52 (213.08) {6.00) 87.43 38087
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JR Toll Road Pvi Ltd
Notes to Financial Statements

Mote 28 - Related Party Transactions

As per accounting standard Ind AS 23 as prescribed under the Companies (Accounting Standard)
Rules, 2015, the related parties and transactions are

disclused balow -

Spounsor Company
Raliance Infrastructure Limited

Ky Management Personnel

Kaustuk Pal - Director (w.e.f Octaber 1, 2015)
Sudhir R Hoshing - Direclo (bl Fabriary 28, 2015)
Madan Biyani - Director (w.ef March 31, 2015)

Person having singificant influcnce on the Sponsor Company
Shii Anif .D. Ambani

Enterprises over which person described in (i) above has significant influance

Rehiance Communications Enterprises Private Limited (formerly AAA Communications Privale Limited)

Details of transactions and closing balance ¥ Millions
Particulars March 31, 2017 March 31, 2016
Transactions during the year :

Toll operation and maintainence expenses (including praject execution

support services)

R Infra 6.26 642
Reimbursement of expenditure paiﬁ Ly

R Infra .10 .12
Sub-debts received (in nature of equity)

R Infra 221.00 205.00
Balances at the year end

Retention Maney

R infra 96,24 896,24
Cther current liabilities

R Infia 15.98 14.15
Sub-debts (in nature of equity)

H Intra 1.330.31 1.109,31
Equity share capital (excluding premium)

12 Infra 2,11 0.05
Reliznce Comrmunications Enterprises Pnvate Limited (formenly A8

Communications Privale | imited) - 0.03
Jiangsu Provincial Transportation Engineering Group Cuo,btd i 0.03

April 1, 2015

106.33

7.3

ond 31

(105

03
0.03
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JR Toll Road Pyt Ltd
Motes to Financial Statemonts

Note 29- Gratuily and ather past: employment benaofit plans
a) Defined contribution plan

I'he following amount recognized as an expense in Slatement of profil and Ins

other obligetions athear
than the contiibubion payabia fo the respective authorties.

4 Millions

& on account of provident fund and other funds. Thare ara na

Centnbution to provident tund and other fuds

Total

A ar CRen AL Al A5 at
31st March, 2017 st March, 2016 1=t April, 2015
0,13 0.18 017
0.13 0.138 _D.‘I?

&) Defined banefit plan
Ihe Cempany has a dofined benefit plan {Gratuity] for its emplovess
Under the Act,

emplayes who has compleled five years of sorvice 15 entitled 1o specil

lerglh of service and salany

at refirement age. Every employee wha has courmpleted five vears or inure of service qets

drawn salary) for each

The gratuity plan is govemed by the Payment ol Craluity Act, 1872
L benefil. The level of benafits provided depends on the membn's

o gretuily on depariuie ab 15 days salany (last

comEeleted year of seivice 83 per the grovision of he Faymeant af Graturly Acl, 1972 with tatal cedling on gratuity of Rs.1,000,000¢%, Tha said

gratuity plan is funded.

e foliowing tables simmanes the amaounts recognised in he balance sheet and the mavemeants in ihe net defined benefit obligalion over

the yaar are as follows;

A oal
1st April, 2015

Opening definad bonefit liability / {assats)

Met employes benefit expense recognised in the employes cost
Currant semvice cost

Hast sarvice cost

Inlerast cost on benefil cbligation

(Gain} [ losses on setiiement

Wet benefit expanse

Amount recorded in Other Comprehensive Incomao {OCI)
Measurement during the period due to

Retum on plan assets, axcluding amaunts included in interast exper
Actuarial lozs / (gain) grising fram chanae in financial assumptions
Actuarial lass f (gain} arising on account of cemaographic ass imptiol
Experience (gains)/osses

Amount recognized in OCI

Benofits payments from plan

Closing not defined benefit liability / jasset)

.44

013
.04

0.16

.08
0.03
0.08
(0.16)
D53

— Asaf
15t April, 2015

Opening fair value of plan assets

Net employee benefit expense recognised in the employes cost
Imerest cost/ fincome) an plan assot

{Gain) { lnsses on soiflemant

Mot benefit oxponse

Amount recerdad in Other Comprehensive Income (0GI)
Measurament during the perod due to

Helumn on plan assets, excluding amounts included o nteraz Bxper
Actuarial lass J {gain} ansing from change in financial ssumplicns
Actuarial lass J {gain] ansing on account of demographic assumptiol
Expenance (gainsMlosses

Azsat calling not recogrised s an asset

Amount recognized in OOC]

Employar eantributions/premiums paid
Remehls Haid

Closing tair value of plan assets

As al As at

3st March, 2017 Hst March, 2016
.74 0463
0.14 [0
0.06 0.04
0.20 0.16

0.02 .
¥ 0.oo
{0.81) 004
{0.79) D.05
015 0.74

A at e — Asat
31st March, 2017 st March, 2016
073 0.59
0.06 005
006G D35
0.0a oo
(0.224

(022 0.00
a.09
0.ht L3

Ihi reel (hakilityassel disclosed above relates W lunded plart is as follows,

068
0.08

(.06

(0.043

0.02
0.

o1 1)
0 .5t
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JR Toll Road Pyt Lid
Notes to Financial Statemonts

Note 28- Gratuity and other post-employment benefit plans

T Millions
As at As at Asg at
31st March, 2017 315t March, 2016 1st April, 2015
Prezant valug of fundad obligations 015 074 053
Fair value ol plan assels LET 0.73 0.5%
) (0427 v.o1 [0.08)
Net liability is bifurcated as follows -
Curent 4 L =
Mar-current o (0 42y 0.01 (0.0
Total (0.42} 0.0 (0,06}
- As at o AE at A5 at

31&t March, 2017

st March, 2016

151 April, 2045

sl rale T.05% T7.80% 7.85%
Expectad rate of return on plan assats {p.o)
Salury cacelalion rate (pa) T-50% TA0% 7.50%
Indian Assured |ives Indian Assurad Indian Aasured
Murizlity pre-ratiremeani Martality Lives Mortaiity Lives Maoralily
— {2006-08) {2006-08) 12006 08)
A quarntitelive analysis for sigrilicant assumption 15 as shown balow
As at Az at As at

31st March, 2017

3st March, 2016

1st April, 2015

Assumptions -Discount rate
Senzitivity Level 4

Impact on defined benefil abligation -in % increase -1.21%
impact on defined benedl obfigation -in % decregse 7.93%
Assumptions -Future salary increases

Sensilivily Level 50 bp
Impact on defined benefit ohiigation -n % increase 7.B5%
fmpact on definad benodit obligalion -in % decroase =7.21%

50 bp
4.13%
4.30%,

50 bp
4.38%
-4.16%

Sl bp
4454,
4.74%

50 bp
4 74%
=4 A8

The table below shows the expected cash Nlow profile of the benafits o be paid 1o the currant membership of the plan based on past service

AE At
st March, 2047

“AE AT
3st March, 2016

AE Al
1st April, 2015

Within the next 12 months (next annual reporting period) 0.00
Between 2 and 5 years 0.02
Betwern 6 and 9 years n.oz
For and Beyond 10 years s 048
Total expectod payments .50

Ihe gverage duration of the defined banefit plan abhgabian adhe

end ol the reporting period 15.11 yoars

.07
.12
.85
0.59
1.61

.51 years

002
0.08
(.68
0.45
1.29

.18 years

As al
31st March, 2017

Plan Assets Composition

As at
#st March, 2016

Asat
15t April, 2015

Non Quotsd

lsurer Managad Funds (! 0.57 0.73 (.58
0.57 0.73 0.58

perind is given below.

Opening value of assel eiling 0.0

Add @ Interest on openiyg balance on asset celing - Q.00

Remeasuramant due lo

Changes in surplusidoiciel 0.22 e {0.02}

clozing value of assel cailing o2z
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JR Toll Road Company Limited
Motes 1o Finanelal Statements

Mote 30 - FIRST TIME ADOPTION OF IND AS

Tha Cnm_p:m-.r has prapared theso Financial Statemonls whecty comply with Ind A% applicable for the persads ending March 31, 2017 logeiher with ho
comparative period data as at and for e year ended Merch 1, 28 respectively as described |0 the Summary of signiicant accounting policies. In
prepanng these financial statemenis, e Company has considersd Aprl 91 2095 as the date of rarsiion snd has adyirslod the amgunts reported
previously nthe financial stastoments propared in accordanca with tho accounting standirds noldied undo Dompanies (heoenting Stasdard; Hulos,
2006 far amanged) and atho relevant provisions of he Aot (Freviaus CAAL or indian B5AMH)
Ihe adoptiar of lnd AS hag boen cained out in accordanes will ind AS 101 Fasi-ime Adeption of frefian Aecounting Standeards.

In preparing these Ind AS Financial Slaternarts, the Company has ovailed certain axamptions and exceplions in asesrdance wilk Ired AE 101, as
explained bolow, The meuling dillcrence betyesn Ihe: camrying|velues of the asssts and fabdikes in the Financial Stcments 83 al tha transiian date

undar Ind AR ond Previous GAAF have been racagnised directly In equity [retainad #EMIngs or ancthar appropnate calepony of equity]. This nolo
explaing the adjusiments made by the: Company in restating its Previous GAAR Financial Statermonts, Inclirding the Dalance Shacl as at April @, 2015

A, Exemptions from relrospoctive application

Ing A5 101 allowes first-time adoptars cerlain azemplians fiem elmspective application of cortain requirements under Ind AS. The Company b
elocted 19 apply tha luliswing cplonal axemphons rom retrazpective apphezdion of Ind AS:

{a) Amorlization of intangible assots arlging from service concession arrangeanenls
The: Company has used exemplion under Ing A5 101 and has continue 1o adopt tha Bccousting poalicy of Previous SALE for amorli-ation for
Intanfpble auscts arging from seruss: concesalan arrangaments relating o corcessan ol rogdy Intangible: assots recagnized in tha Finangl
Shatements.
B. Ercepliona from retreepective application
The Camypery has applied the following escoptions frem ful retospeetive applleation of ind AS e mendatarily requiced under nd A5 107
ja} Estimates
On assesemunl of the estimates macda undexr the Preyiaus GALAF Tinarcial statemments, the Company has concludssd Thal there iz na NECEssity to
rewvise the estimales under Ind AS, as thera = o ohicctive avidence that 1 calimates ware in wror, However, estimatas, bl were regquired
unicder ind AS But not required urider Previaus GAAF, are: made by the Company for e relevan reporkng datps, refiecting conditions existing as
al thal dade.
(b Clagsification and measureimeat of financial assots
The ciansification of financial assets t be Medserod at amehised cost ar fair value thraugh othar COMprelcnsee neome 8 mado on the bass of
e facts ond circumatancas that eosted om the dato cf tranzitian to bad AS

C. Transition to Ind A% - Reconciliations

fnd A3 107 roquires an enfity 1o reconsile aquity, cash flows for Hie priar peflods. The following table represents the meongilistions fom previcus Indian
I Ettect of Ind A% adoplion on the balance sheet as st Merch 31, 2018 and

[ EMeclof Ind AS adoption an the stalement of profit and less for ihe year ended March 31,

Il Hecongilistion of total equity as &l March 37, 2016 and April 4, 2018

I¥.  Recenciliation of lolal somprehensive incame for the year erded March 31, 2018

V. Material adjustments 1o the statemant of cash fiows

I Effeet of Ind AS adoption on the Balance Shoot ¥ Millione

As at March 31, 2016

{End of last period presented Aa at April 1, 2015

Particulars f’;‘:‘:‘:’."‘m‘: under Previous GAAR) (Date of transition)
ataotion ind AS ! Ind A5
" 'l;'::; adjustment  Ind AS 2:::; adjusimen  Ind AS
5 is
ASSETS
Hon-current assots
[&) Intangible assots fik 5,300 84 [B08,23) 438271 4982.03 (B8282)  3.pE0.22
{0} Intangible assets under develapment {i} - - o AB5, 00 80,50 546,41
(C) Dhlearrndd tux assots (not) [ - 27403 274.03 . 4866 148,64
(d] Cither non - gurrant aseats - - 008 . 0.0
Current assots
18] Financial Azews
i} Cash and cash equivalents 10 54 - 10 54 283 : .33
(13 Dittor financial asset (i} 502 - 562 .28 17 R 23,13
) Currand Tax Agsels (Met) 1.41 - 1.41 1188 - 11.58
(4} Diher currem assets 16,05 - 19.05 37.53 - 3753
Total Assets 533706 634.20)  ATUSRR _ 552452  [75A7E] 478984
EQUITY AND LIABILITIFS
EQUITY
[a) Equity share: capital 011 = o .11 - LR
(b FHubcndinated debi (in naturs of Eguity) (i} 1,108,530 1,108 30 = B A0 H04.30
[ez] Clther equity 40600 [B816,55) (411,85} GET.0F (RIE 20 (181,713}
LIABILITIES
Nan-currenl liabilities
{2k Finaincial Liakilitias
(i Dorrowings (hig) & (el 451886 {1,137 kig3) 3482 20 4 Eil# (H (B34.70) ks B
(i) Qitheer hrwancial liabilitieg [wil 102.57 {14.53) a8.04 11175 [24.06) B7.¥0
(B Provssinmns (v} 074 Z76 23 22597 047 12797 ThAa
Current liabilitles
(1] Financial Liabiiiwes
{ii} Trade payables 27 59 - 2780 g3.78 - E3 TS
(i) Qther financial latiities 180 30 - 18030 G200 G2 .60
(b Cther 2urrant liabilibas 1.67 167 [t 056
(c] Previsions 0,03 b.03 oo8 o Q.08
Total Equity and Liatuhitics _ 533706 (634.20)  4T03.66 552457 (734780 _dT3.04

“The presentation requirements uncer Previous GAAF diffars fram and hence the Previous GAAP information has baen regrouped faf base of
recanciliation with ind 5. Tha rew GAAP informatian s derived based on the audited financial statements af the Compary
9 =3
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Ji Tudl Road Company Limited
Noles to Financial Statomants

HNote 30 - FIRST TIME ADOPTION OF IMD AR
Il Effect of Ind AS adoption an the Statement
of Profit and Loss

% Miltions
Motes to For the year ended March 31, 2016
Farticulars tiret time Il AS
_Maoptin SRR adjustments Ind-A3
Revanu: rom Operations 438 Fd 434, 5q
Cther Incame {if 1,6 2.14 a7
Total Incoma ___ AdDa 214 sazm
Cupanses
Tall Dperation and Maintsinence BB (i} & [w) 69,75 LN ] 160.84
Finployee Benefits axgains: 516 (4.0 512
Fianss onsts [iw) to {wi) gl T 2550 AT5. 30
Amartizstion eeprnse (] 146.48 (21.81) 12487
Crhar e ponsng {I} a2z 18.01 IR
Total expensue ) BR162 114.78 Toh4L
Profit | {loas) befors tax [241.44) {11265} 1354.04)
Tex exponsa
Currant tax {LE3 o2 DAL
Duaferred 1ax chargsfiacdity (it} ] - (124.33) (134 37
g &3 [T 2453} FEE=RH
PrefitfiLuss) Tor the period (LR 11.88 1230,9%)

Qther Comprehensiva [ngonmne

(i} ltama that will not be reclassifled

to profil or lnss
Remaasuiamenis of net defined (0.0 (005
benedit plans ; Gains J (Loes)

1il} Income tax relating to items that will not

b reclassified to profit or loss

Rermeasuraments of net deline:d banafi cians = {0L0Z) (0.
Diher Comprehensive Incomel{Loss) for the year - 10,03) (0.03)
Total Comprehensive Incomed(Loss] Tor te yoar {zaz.0r) 1165 (23043}

"The presentation regdremants mder Frovous CAAP diffars froan and heree the Previows GAAR Infarmation has haen regrowgsed far
oase of reconciliation with Ind AS. The regrouped Previous GAAS infarmation | darivad based on the audied finanal statemants of
Ihiz Gomgary.
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JR Toll Rosd Company Limited
Wotes o Financial Statements ;

Mote 30 - FIRST TIME ADOPTICN OF IND A5

Reconciliation of Total Equity
T Milllors

. Holes b As at
Particulars first time 315t March, i G
~atoptian_ T Tl sinLidod
Tolal equity (shareholder's funds as por Indian SAAP) A05,00 BETOF
Audjusiments:
Rerasgaclive apolication of senico GINICHSELNEING arangurmints {i} [41.54) (74 08y
Discounting impact of Financlel assels recagnisod under i 240 64 247 4%
CONCaEsinaire armangament
Cigatal Resanse recognised as financial assat {n (1,006 48) 11,008 BRY
Resurtacing e iwvisian recognisad 26 e Ind A5 28 (incheding wwaniding v (22523 {127.97)
of ssount on regurfacing provision)
Riscourting ul Retontion mansy payabk: ] A0 £y (M RE]
Borrewings {iv) (B.27) | [E I E
Subordinated debil (in nature of Cquiy} [Fii} 1,08 30 a4 An
ol d2.50 J.50
Tur cffecds on adjestments (defored sa mpact} (it} 27403 14368
Tatal adjustments 252.76 7 96,11
Total equity {sharcholder's funds as per Ind AS) 6B7.78 T23.17
L = ———
Reconclliation of total cemprahensive income for the yoar ended March 31, 2016 T Millicns
Nutas 1o fifst Year arnded
Ume sdaption March 31, 2016
Mt profit o (lees) 36 per Provious GAAP fndian GAAR) (24207
Adjusiments:
Retrospective application of scrvice cancessianaine rargements i (6.)
Impact of Financial assets racogrised under COMGASEI0Nainae {ib 214
arrangement (net of dissounting)
Resurtacing provision recognlsed as per Ind AS 37 {Imeluding (v} [97.26]
uninding of discount on resurfacing provisian)
Wrwirding of discount on Relention morey (i) (9.11)
Barrawings fiv) i2.12)
Taw effacls on adjustmens (deferred lax impasat) {iiy 1211_35._
Total adjustments 1155
Total comprahanaive incomel{loss) under ind A5 [230.43)
Matarial adjustments o the statement of cash fiows
T Miiiians
Yoar ended March 31, 2016
Indian GAaP ind AS Ind A%
Mt cash germrated rom operating activises aaray LR e
MNet cash (vsed ik generaied from investing activitios 1.02 34 51 39,53
Nel cash used in finarcing activitios [350.27} {2945} {380.73)
MNal ncreaseddecreasa) in cash and cash squivasants 111 74| - (11.29)
Add: Caeh and cash equivalents at the baginning of the year 21.43 - 21.83

Cash and cash equivalonts at the end of the yiar 10,54 . 10.54
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AR Tall Road Comgany Limited
Notes to Financial Statemeanis

Notes to First time adoption of Ind AS

Mate (i) - Application of servico concessionaire arrangoment as per Appendix & of Ind 45 11 (

ﬁppe_'lvdix Aot ind AS 11 'Service Concessicnaine Amangement’ is appkcabie to the Company which provides guidance on asaounting by the operatons ol publie-
Ic-private: service concessian arangements under which private sector entities participats in the development, financing, ocperation and maintenance of
infrastructure for provision of public services The Cempany s engadad In to Design, Build, Finance, Cporate and Transfor (DB FOT} basis the toll roads neluding
opevalen Bnd maintanance thoreof during the concession pencd. Afer the axpiry of the esncession perod the Company s required to handover the
Infrastructure | o the fall roads o the gramtes ie. Naticsal Highway futhoritios of India {HHAL.

As par the saliont feature of the CONGESSIGN arrangomoent, the operdlor has a8 twofold actvily based an which mRENUE is reCogniaed in the fnancial statements
whanst s in ling with the enuircment of Appandix A of Ind A5 11,

- B CORSIrUCon adivity in respect of da obligstion to design, buid and finance an asset that it makes availablo the grantor | revenuo s recogniced wi o stage ol
completion busis in sccardance wilh Ind A% 11 during the constructlon phase al the ol roads,

- @n operaling and maintenance activity In respact ol Ihe: assets under the cuncession during the operational | revenue is recognized in acoardines with Ing A5
1E.

In return of (s activities, the Company roonives =ansidarslion from users of toll rosds as rght be receive foll for usage ol il ronds in consideraton o tho
financing send construction of e infrastructure for which qn intangltle assate is recognized In the financial statemants. Also Az per 1he concesson amngomeny
pird of the project cosl s novered By an uncorditional right t2 receive payments frem the grantar.i.e. NHA| which has been recognizad as "Grant recaivable fram
MEAI" under ihe hesd financial assel and imangitis aseels has been recogniced in the extent of unguaranteed balance, of which the amount is depersicnt on
lhe: cxtant of uge of the mimasiruciure, |

feetrospective application of 'Sgrvics Concozsiongire arrangamant’ hes led to change: in the accounting policy of the Company as on the transitian e for
claseification, recegnition and measurament of construction of assets and maintonance abfigatione under the service concossion arrangaments.

On accourd of abave there has been decraase in ntangible assets ansing on account of toll collection rights of ¥ 1,028 58 milllens as al tMarsh 31, 2016 and T
100B. B8 million &3 at April 1, 2015, wherain the company has an unes nditianal right to recabve payrments frem the grantor | o MHAL wiieh has bean deducied from
the cost of inlanyible azsets and recagniced as an firancial agsels which eatlier undes the Indian SAAF was considored o5 a prormuber’s bonributen and was
fecognized 85 ‘Capital Hescrve' in sessrdance wilh AS 12 “Agcaunting lor Government grants'

Furthar, impsct of finangial assets resagnised under SOnCERSIOO Brrangement (mel of discounting) resulling in inereasa in Tatal Equity of T 292,64 milkan as at
Mareh 31, 2048 and T 247 4% million as al April 1, 2015 and dacrease in kas 5F T 2,14 million for the year ended March 31 2016

Maracver there has beon decrasss in intanglble assets and decresse n total edquily, arising on accourt of application of service concesalan arrangemsent, of T
B1.34 millicn oz at Mareh 31, 2018 and T 74 .58 million as &t April 1, 2015 and increass in Ioss of ¥ 6,36 milian for the year anded March 341, 2016,

Nate [ii) - Recognition of deforred tax assets/liability as per Ind A5 12

I A5 12 requires an enlily to recognize delermed tax using balanca sheet approgch, which s based on the tampecary differences botween the tax base of an
as&at or hability and its camying amount in the financas? statements. Ceterrad tax s provided in full for all tempetary diffarences arising belween ihe lax bases of
assets and liabilibes and thelr carying amaunt in the francial Blaternznts. The Company recognizes deferad tax assets for ab deduclibl: temporary differences
including unused fax losees camried forward to the extent that It is probable that taxable profits would be availsble &gainst which the deductible temperary
differences can b ylilzed.

Under indian GAAP deferred tax wae recognized based on income aporoach and deferred tax assets in casa of unused tax losses carned forward are resognized
if there |s virual certainty that sulficient future taxatle incems will be avaliable 10 realize the same. Hence on account of ateve defored Lo 455015 Were not
recognized under the indian GAAP

N account of above there has been increass in deferrad 1ax Basel o) resulting in increase in Total Equity by £ 274.03 million as st March 31, 2048 elllion and
t 145,68 million as at April 1, 2015 and decrgase in loss of ¥ 12435 million for the year ended March 1, 2016 mainly on accourk of Ind A5 adjustnants
pertaining to retrospective application of service concessian arangement and deferred tax asset recognizod for urused tax Iesses canibd farward 85 per ind AS
12,

Mote (ifi)- Classification of subordinate debl instruments {in nature of agquity)

Ind A5 32 requires classification of linancial instrurments issued into financial Gabilites or equity. Subordinate debl instruments isseed do ol meet the definition of
a financial liability, as the terms do not cast a contractual abligation on the the Company to make any payment of principal and acerund interes! thereon in cash or
uiher financial asset. Further, since the instrurments ane non-convertble, the Company is not required to setle the contracts by lssusnce of their own oguity
instruments.

Under Indizn GAAP, theze instruments ane reported as Lormowings

On account of above thore has been increase in fotal Equity af  1108.30 milion as at March 31, 2016 and * 80430 millien as at Apnl 1, 2015 with &
carresgoanding decrease in borrowlngs.

Hote [iv) - Borrowings

Ind AS 10% roquires transsclion costs incurmed tawsands onginalien of bormowings to be deductsd from Ihe: carmying amounl af bormwings en lnitial recogrition
Thix =ame is recegnized as interost a3 pan of the offeciive infrast rete method aver the poriod of the Eormawing

Urder Indizan GAAR, these ware caprlilsnd 10 intengible assate as par AS 16 ‘Barrewing Goel as and when (fourmed.

On acecount of above there has beon increased in borrowings of T 6.23 million a8 al March 31, 2016 and % 4.1% million as at April 1, 2015 with a corresponding
sdjuslment to imangitie assets. This resuliod In Increass in lose by T 2112 million for the year endod Marsh 9, 20B.

Kote (v} - Resurfaning ohllgation recognized as per Ind A5 37

A3 per service contmsion arengement, the Compsny s obligated to carry aut resurfecing of the roads under the eoncassn periesd overy fhve years. The
Cumpany estimates the Lkely provision required towands resurfacing and accrues the vasls on 8 straight oo besie over the perncd al fhe end of which
resurfacing would be required in the ladement of Brafit and Loes

Lirder Indian GAAP the zame sbligation was saognized in the vear in whioh resurfacing was reguired as por the consession anmngoment

The met offect of the above e decressse in total Equity by T 226 23 million as at March 3, 2048 and T 127,97 milion as at April 1, 2015 with comeepomiing
inuresnse in resuracing provisicns (nel of wrwinding diseount). This resulled in increase in loss by ¥ 87 28 million far the year ended March 31, 2016,

Hate (v} - Discounting af Relention money

Il L5 109 requires financial inslsumsents to be measured at fair value al initial recognition in case fur financlal liability not at i valyo through profit o loss,
Feoweavar i the Tnir valee of the financisi liaklily at initial recognition differs liom transaction price 8. tar vahee of the sansideration g.Enn ur reepived than the
enily shall recognize [he instruments at ite fair valse In the present case the Company has discounted the retention maongy payable in ceder lo e the fair
value of the retention maney al initial recognitien, After initial messyrement subsequently the liabilifies would be recognized &t amartissd cost

Under Indian GAAP retanlion moncy was recognized st histoneal cost 2nd ra discounting wae required 16 be dona

Tha et effect of the abeve is decrease w lofal Equity T 21,62 milion &3 al March 31, 2018 and T 21,62 million as al April 1, 2016 This rosulted Increass in lose

By T 9,11 mihan o the year ended March 31, 2018
—
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JR Toll Road Company Limited
Motes to Financial Statements

Mote 31: Assots pledged as security

The carrying amounts of assets pledged as security for current and non-current borrowings are: ¥ Millions
As at
Parliculars As at As al 15l April,
Motes  [31st March, 2017 315t March, 2018 2015
Currant
Financial assels
First charge
Cash ang cash eguivalents 53 47.06 10 54 21.83
Other Financial Assets 5k 14 82 5az 23.13
Non-financial assets
First charge
Other Curmo! Assets 7 10.13 13 05 -37.55
Total currant agsets pledged as security 72.00 35.51 B2.49
Non-current
First charge
Intangible assets 4 4. 248,08 4,392.71 288822
Intangible assets under developmeant 4 - - 846.41
Other Non Curmet Assels f .42 - 0.06
Total non-current assets pledged as security 4.248.51 | 43927 4,545.69
Total assels pledged as security 4,320.50 4,428.23 4.628.18 |
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JR Tell Road Pvt Limited
Notes to Financial Statements

Note 32 - Statement of cash received and deposited during demonitisation period

* Millions
Specified bank Other Total
Particulars notes denomination
- notes B
Closing cash in hand as on 08.11.2016 253 0.00 253
{1} Permitted receipls 9.45 2387 33.32
i) Parmitted paymenls . . .
IS Amnunt deposited in bank 11.548 23 68 M G7
Closing cash in hand as on 30.12 2016 & 1.1% 1.18
Mote 33 - Auditor Remuneration % Millions
SrNo.  |Particulars o ' Year ended “Year ended
March 31, 2017 | March 31, 2016 |
1 Audit Fess 0.44 .58
2| Cerificalion Fass ~_bh2o U.0d
0.64 0,46
Mote 34 - Contingent liabilities
T Millions
Sr Mo, - Parliculars As at
J1st March,
2017
Cifferences in balances as per bank loan confirmations and books of accounts
mainly on account of interest rate resefling are under reconciliation with the
1 bankers. The Company expect 1o seltle these soon and do not anlicipate any U3
further liabilily on account of interest

Note 35 The Campany, incurred certain expendilure peraining to installation of toll collection lane and other
items amounting to ¥ 0.78 Millions. The same has been charged off lo Statement of Profit and Loss
under the head Toll Operation and Maintenance Expenses for the vear ended March 31, 2017,

MNote 36  Conseguent upon the de-monetisation of currency notes by Central government, toll collection had
been suspended from Movember 9, 2016 to December 2, 2016 for which the company has raised
claims on NHA| for reimbursement of the expenses incurred during this period as per the provisions of
the Concession Agreement entered into botween the company and NHA| read along with NHAI
circular dated November 29,2016 and December 6, 2016 in this regard. Amount of 25, 36 16 million
claimed, being contractually enforceable and cerain of recovery, has been recognisced as Income. Ag
at March 21, 2017, T B.89 millions was receivable and disclosod under Other Financials Assels —
Current,

Note 37 During the period the company had sppointed a toll consultant and have ra-estimated the toll revenue
aver the remaining concession period. Accordingly, Intangible Assels have been amortisod
pruspectively as per the rovised eslimataed toll revenue

Mote 38 Pursuant to the NHAI Croular dated Noveimber 15, 2016, whergin NHAL prazcrined that micrao
surfacing may be used for the 1enewal course. maintonance and repair on national highweys for at
least 25% to 30% of the total Iength, Based on the said circular the The Cempany have estimatod the
provision for Resurlacing expanses in the books of accounis

Note 33 As per the terms of the Concessio Agreemant, the company has to fulfil maintenance cbligatien.

NHAI has issued letters contending that the company has not been fuliilling its maimienance abligation
which has been dispuled by the company, The company is of the firm view that there aie no fikel oo
ot any outflow on account of the zama

MNote 40 Events after reporting period

There are no subseguent evenl after the reporting period which required adjustments to the Financial
Stalements. —
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JR Toll Road Company Limited
Notes to Financial Statements

Mote 41 Previous year figures have been regrouped and re-arranged wherever necessary to make them
comparable to those for current year,

As per our attached report of even date

For MKPS & Associates For and on behalf of the Board
Charterod Accountants

Firm Regn No. 302014E

J B

— i
L__~N4rendra Khanda Kaushik Pal ' Madanr Biyani
artner Director Directo
Membership No. . 0BE025 DIN:05237230 DIN:07 DS?__,}_-*
Place - Mumbai Placa : Mumbai |

Date : April 14, 2017 Date : April 14, 2017
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